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Characteristics of The Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and
other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible

to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.
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1997

e Establishment of the Group
o AREMEAM L

1998

¢ Development of technologies and applications
o Hiig K FE AR B

1999

e Launched hardware products for smartcard system under
the trademark of “"HOMAC"

e Awarded with important smartcard and RFID projects in Hong Kong

* J[HOMAC] WSk B F RS RANERER
° REBEISZRE RS FRAERERI TR

2000

e Winning of 2000 HK Industry Award
s IS=ZTTHFRBIHER

2001

e Listing on The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited

e Establishment of wholly owned PRC subsidiary: ITE (China) Limited in

Shanghai
e Winning of 2001 HK Industry Award

e Acquisition of leading IT System Integrator, Quesco Holdings Limited and

Quesco Systems Limited on 7 December 2001
s NEBHARSMARARRIZERTS LT
e RHPEl LRI Z2EMBAR : LBMKERAGERAT
e ME-ZZT -/ BIXRR

* REZZ-F+Z AL HWBATERABHUNENRNRALRERD — BHEE

ERERAADRENZSERERAR

Corporate Review

ANCIIEN=E

Accreditation of 1ISO 9001:2000 Quality Assurance System
Launched new ISO15693 product series and solutions
Patent filing of ISO15693 based Smart Key Management
System (SKMS) accepted by the State Intellectual Property
Office of the People’s Republic of China

Awarded with the first ISO15693 Smartlabel project in Hong
Kong

Strategic Business Agreement signed with Shanghai Public
Traffic Card Company Limited (SPTCC) for the provision of
value-added solutions and services to its user community
Entered into distributor agreement with Texas Instruments
for marketing, sales and support of its product ranges
Became the sub-issuer of MULTOS

Receiving of Caring Company Award

E{51SO 9001:20007 B EIR A #AH
HEH—FFISO15693F MR AR R

LAISO15693 A £ B Rt A EE R S EF R FRE T EBER
HAAERRENFZE
RISABEIEISO15693 8B AL L2
HEESARTBRROBRAREIRKMETG R REAFE
RABERRS RRRHB

HEEREMNER ARSI IR - AEHERFEE  HER
*E

BAMULTOSHIZ1TE

BB RREIE R

Geographical expansion into Macao

Appointed as an international channel partner of Transcore,
LP

Patent filing of Automated Passenger Management System
(APMS) accepted by the State Intellectual Property Office of
the People’s Republic of China

Accredited as one of the fastest growing technology
companies by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in the “2003 Asia
Pacific Technology Fast 500"

EBmREIRM

% Transcore, LP ZEREIREH
HikEBMREEEARENRFRETRERANBERRER
RRE

BEH BAERSSMMITEERE-_REIZTALESRES
RR50038 | REEHATIER

ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 &

3



4

Corporate Review
NSIIE =

e Establishment of ITE Sistema (Macau) Limitada

e Contract award of the Macao SAR Customs Services “Automated Vehicle
Clearance System” & Public Security Forces Affairs Bureau “Automated
Passenger Clearance System”

e Successfully completed the ISO 9001:2000 Quality Assurance System Audit

e Awarded the Caring Company by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

o B EERL (RFY) BROA

* BIVEEUEMERTHESHE [EHABEHEAR IR
REBEEHR [REEBBEAZRS | T2

* MIUZTRLISO 9001: 2000 FFEE R E B EE AR E

o EEMFENEBRARBIZE]ZS

e Winning of “Hong Kong Awards For Industries 2005 — Machinery and
Equipment Design Award” for Automated Passenger Management System
("APMS™)

e Awarded of Computer Registration Management System of the Construction
Worker Registration Authority, HKSAR

e QSL passed the ISO 9001:2000 Quality Assurance System

e Successfully completed the Hong Kong Marathon 2005

e Joined “Give Blood Give Live” — Blood Donation Day for the Hong Kong Red
Cross Blood Transfusion Service

o [MEEHBHAK | XE_STRRBIRES — HESRBERFE

s BEGZEET AZMERRNEMLIMEBRRGNENIRE

o FERIEERBIBISO 9001: 2000 M ERERFNEFX

* BN R E B B HIHA2005

e BUOBHEBLA+FERMTE

ITE (Holdings) Limited

e Official launch of Computer Registration Management

System of the Construction Worker Registration Authority,

HKSAR

Overseas expansion in Middle East and Southeast Asia

Establishment of Intellectual Property Rights Centre

ITE Smartcard Solutions Ltd. implemented the first

Automated Passenger Clearance System (“APCS"”) of the

Public Security Forces Services Bureau, Macao SAR at the

Barrier Gate Checkpoint

ITE and Quesco staff completed the Hong Kong Marathon

2006

ITE and Quesco received the “Caring Company Logo” by

The Hong Kong Council of Social Welfare for four years and

two years respectively

Successfully completed Exhibition in “IT Week 2005" Macao

The ITE Smart Key Management System Patent was

successfully granted by State Intellectual Property Office of

the People’s Republic of China

BEXT AGZMEERNEMEMERERARERNRARS

(BEIBERERRE AR SEPRRREREARER

PRALENGE R

BEPRBITHERZIKEKEN [ BEBERS | MR EH

SRR BR R B EER

BERENETHIIEREBFRI2006

o BB BEATRERBEFEN [AARBIE] SR

o BEMMTEARP [ERRHE2005 | RE

s BERERNEMPEARINBEERANAEER [HEEHER
MEEZE R 5t | 2R




¢ Winning of “Hong Kong Awards For Industries 2007 — Machinery and Equipment
Design Award Certificate of Merit” for “Wireless Smartcard Transaction Controller
featuring Bluetooth technology”

e Official Launch of Extension of Macao Automated Passenger Management System
("APMS")

e Granting of Research Funding by Innovation and Technology Commission of HK to

RF Tech Ltd.

Forming Strategic Partnership with Macao Pass Card

New Trademark and Logo for RF Tech Ltd.’s Software Product Series (“intelli”)

Granting of the First U.S. Design Patent by the United States Patent and Trademark

Office to RF Tech Ltd.

[FERETFEGEMNEREFRZ RN | RE-_STLFEBIHX — HERKE

BE

xRS B BREEERS (APMS)) WIER RS

RF Tech Ltd. F{ZHERE BRIF R BNAF RBEMEES

22 [RPYE | SRR S 1R

lintelli ] ZEM AR ARF Tech Ltd B E R R FINBERZH

RF Tech Ltd. F I BV E B SR EE/R 9 ZEIR 5 EF

e Become the regional channel partner of the world leading smartcard and digital
security company, Gemalto SA

Completion of the first Innovation and Technology Commission funded research and
development project, Embedded Computer Vision Escalator Passenger Monitor, together
with a PCT patent filed

Delivery of the first multi-applications smartcard system built on MacaoPass Card for
a luxury real estate complex in Macao

Completion of a sophisticated equipment asset management system for the Macao
Prison using RFID technologies

Completion of the first smartcard driven passage management and access control
system for the Lingnan University

Collaboration with the Hong Kong Polytechnic University through the first technology
transfer and licensing arrangement for a digital security product

B IRE R R BB R RER L BB HIGemalto SABE SR AR
HEEGAHMBMRSESEINEE - [RAXTERRERBARERERE
B - JBERITER @ WEBEFEERQ R FEREF

AU RN EEERNRMEERE RS DEA RSN REIEER

PRI AP BEIABE B R AR AL A SRR B T Y E B IR R 4T
AEEASRHARER FBERMERS

HEEBBTABEHESF  BBRNEBRRBIBZRER

Corporate Review
NSIIE =

e Delivery of the first campus smartcard system based on Macau
Pass Card for Macao Pui Ching Middle School

e Partnering with Canon Hong Kong for the development of Macau
Pass Card driven e-payment solution for their photocopiers

e System migration from contact to contactless smartcards for The
Chinese University of Hong Kong

e Award of hospital-wide access control system contracts for Queen
Elizabeth Hospital, Grantham Hospital, The Duchess of Kent
Children’s Hospital and Tung Wah Hospital

e Award of contract for the provision of computer personnel services
for the Hong Kong Hospital Authority

o Completion of Exhibition in “CARTES in Asia”

o BINARPIEEHERBRGENRPIBFNRE SRS

° BiCanonfXRe BB EMR D AR - RINBAER R
Bl FERARETHNZ IR RITIRE TS ENTERS

° AEBHRNAE BB ARG HEAEEINEREEEER

s EMZMBRNERFESEY  BEFADMEER EEHE
IR~ KOBIBEABRA R BB R REERT

s BB AEBEREERREHEBMEHESRBENED

o BINTER [EENEREF B BB TR |

e Collaboration with Automotive Parts and Accessory Systems R&D
Centre (“APAS") for development of Electric Vehicle Fast Charging
Station with Professional E-payment System, and completion of
exhibitions in various regions

e Expand collaboration with Canon Hong Kong for development
of Octopus Card driven e-payment solutions for their document
management systems

e Delivery of the first multi-applications payment solution based on
MacauPass Card for the Macao Institute for Tourism Studies

e Development of the first active-RFID based track and trace
application for Macao law enforcement government department

e Launch of the World's 1st Dual Frequency RFID guard tour reader

with Bluetooth connectivity

ENBEERHMARERTPOEE  HREASEETWERS

ZEHHEREFE 0 TESEAHENRESRED

* HCanonfEReEBBMRORABEREE » RUBBEN[/UEB]F
FERRETHZ IR RITIEEFERLS

o BINARFIRESRFHE R A EEREN DRME ] B5EFNZY

BETFNERS
o REPIBEBAT PG BIEERNE RSB R E L B
HERBE

° P ZIREEESAGRRRIFIRNERS - WA AT HIEEIIRE
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Corporate Review
NI El

¢ Extended coverage of intellAC intelligent security systems to the eighth public hospital
in Hong Kong

Complete delivery of an advanced hybrid RFID enabled library automated system for
an academic institute in Macao

Complete delivery of an automatic fare collection system for a public swimming pool
of the Hong Kong SAR Government

Award of contract for the design and supply of book sorter system for a public library
of the Hong Kong SAR Government

Launch of 20Kw DC fast charging station for electric vehicle charging application

Trail testing of electric vehicle fast charging stations at Government Department and
automobile service centre

Invention patent granted for ‘Embedded Computer Vision Escalator Passenger
Monitor’ by the State Intellectual Property Office
REEERZARESBALERECERE B

B FRPIRERRTTHR R AT —EERNGHEREB R & FRr BRI BB EEEE
TERZNEBEAE T2 ARFKEN BB R RS

ER—EARBENE FAREERRHURZEENAHIERENEH

[20F REBHHEZRREFTEBI | RERRATSEA

EEBBT M REEEBE RGP OETRET BIEE AT

SREA [RARXAEREERBAREREREE | BEHEARANBRERAEE
R TER

ITE (Holdings) Limited

Launch an Octopus Card payment solution for two fast charging
stations of electric vehicle in Hong Kong Island

Complete delivery of the second automatic fare collection system
for a public swimming pool of the Hong Kong SAR Government
Expand the hospital smartcard platform to intelligent emergency
call system and ift control system

Awarded a contract for the design and supply Computerised
Vehicle Inspection System for the Transport Department of Hong
Kong SAR Government

Accredited the Certificate of Merit in 2012 Hong Kong Awards
for Industries with HOMAC® RD-200AB I1SO 15693 Handheld
Antenna Reader

Accredited two “Certificate of Merits in Hong Kong RFID Awards
2012" with HOMAC® RD-200AB 1SO 15693 Handheld Antenna
Reader and Embedded Computer Vision and RFID Enabled Book
Enrolment Mechanism

Invention patent granted for “Device for registering and managing
book based on computer vision and radio frequency identification
technique” by the State Intellectual Property Office of the People’s
Republic of China

AR RANEZERBREZS 2 EBBEEREIE
HEA
TRRZAE B EBERE T ARPKEN BB R R
EREBRERFEEARERSRYAGRARKERZRS
ER—BARBBINE T ERENEMLBRRIRS

[ ERGHERBIR T F = B8RS | WMi520128 8 THRHER
BT ARTHERRSE

[ E NSRRI BT F 15U B0ERS | I [ SRR E AR R E |
WIS E20128BREGIERPI A REREERS

SRR ENGTEREER IR RN SRR L EEEE |
EhEARANBBERABERRRTEF

Bk | MEBELE



Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (“the Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”),
| hereby present the annual results for ITE (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, “ITE” or the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2013 (the “Year”).

Mission

The mission of the Group is to become the leading provider of smartcard,
radio frequency identification (“RFID"), biometrics product and solution
and professional services in the world. ITE has been pioneering and has
achieved outstanding performance in the areas of smartcard solutions
and integration services in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("Hong Kong” or "HKSAR"), the Macao Special Administrative Region
("Macao”) and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). With profound
expertise, strong research and development (“R&D") capability, proven
track record and excellent reputation, the Group has established a leading
profile in our industry and has adopted a proactive approach to introduce
innovative and customized smartcard, RFID and biometrics applications
to our clients. Leveraging on our extensive industry experience and
intellectual assets, ITE will continue to develop innovative products and
multi-applications solutions for clients coming from different industries
and to expand our businesses to more overseas countries.

Appreciation
I ' would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest thanks to my

directors, management and staff for their dedication and hard work, and
shareholders, financiers and business partners for their continued support.

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2013

TEHRE

AABEREZEEG(ESg] KEFF]) 8 2ITE
(Holdings) Limited ([AAR]]) REMBAR (8 [1TE]
%IAEE]) BET—=F=-A=1+—"HLEFENEHF
#E([FR]) -

B

AEEMRE RENAEMARGHMUNEER 547
HAl - VBB RER TRERBHER - ITE-EBEE
FAFRTHE ([FE]) RFIFRTERER (DR ) KkH
FEARANE ([HE]) EBERERTRENERTIENSE
BB R F MR - NEBABHEEMD  BAWHFRR
e (T e REFNEERZFEES  BEETER
RETBGMA - YEBRAFTPHEN B REFFTENS
BER - STRERI RAEMBHAEMERLT R - BERREREN
CEERIABEE  ITERERKE TRITENE P

BIFES « STAEAHTRRIBEIANE RS - TEE
EHEHHER -

&
ANEHLRE  AEFERA - FIRERETMAM Y
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HE ZE—=FA+hH

ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 &

7



8

Management Discussion and Analysis

%;EE 1 E‘ Eﬁ&ﬁ*ﬁ

Management of the Group has continued to utilise our professional and
committed workforce and financial resources to achieve maximum return
to our shareholders.

Business Review

During the Year, ITE Smartcard Solutions Limited (“ITES”) was awarded
with a number of contracts by clients from market sectors served by the
Group for years. The orders covered the supply of hardware and software
and the provision of professional services to expand their smartcard
platforms, many of them have been in service for more than ten years.
ITES also provided enhancement and upgrade services to the systems
to meet with the latest requirements and needs of our clients and the
information technology world. The solutions and professional services of
ITES were highly appreciated by our clients. ITES completed the design
and delivery of two Octopus Card based automatic fare collection systems
for the swimming pools of the Leisure and Cultural Services Department
and an electricity charging system for the Hong Kong Electric Company
Limited. We also completed the delivery of an advance book sorting
system for the Hong Kong Public Library. We were selected by the largest
property management company in Hong Kong to provide an application
development services for their all-new property client management system
building on the Octopus Card technology. The project will be completed
in mid of 2013.

Besides the two Type Approvals from the Octopus Cards Limited for
electric vehicle ("EV"”) fast charging payment and automatic fare collection
systems for swimming pools, ITES was awarded with a contract to develop
new access control software which will make our solution ready for the
next generation Octopus Card. All Octopus Card access control platform
delivered by ITES will be fully supported by the new software. The
completion of software development is expected to be in late 2013.

For the fourth consecutive year, ITES provided the production and
personalization services of the student smartcards for various institutes
of the Hong Kong Vocational Training Council. More than 14,000 pieces
of student smartcards were produced and delivered. Also for the fourth
consecutive year, our Macau operation arm, ITE (Macau) Limited, was
selected by the Macau Grand Prix for the supply of access control and
parking management system together with on-site professional services

for the event held in last November.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

AEENEREARGREERNN SEETOADRYRK
BR - RERRAEREHER -

EH o

FA ARERESIEERBOZEMNB T AR SR
SMARDA ([BERLED BRZENAGH  3IFEP
HEBTZFREERBERBHOEL - HE BEREHE
- EEREARBEERGLEENEERS - MAS
NEFEEAREENEARNRBERTF - EEERR
RAaTPREMBREROENR - TEHRAREREHE
BART > SHEFPNREEENFE - BEABRINR
NRBEBANEBRNENRS 258 BRERLER
FIB N RKERZFENRBEGR [ERERARN
A REABUNNBEERS  TANE-—MAREER
TN —IBEENEE DRSS - LR - TEERA
BERAEPEEBRANGH  RZDRREEN/ER
THERHFHREE  BEBR T =FPxK -

FA- BERGERINEBRERAR] MEBARERE
BAHANRIL - ZEREAARLIRBBANEBRHBNTE
PEREAENEBRARBICLEBHE - DEERR
RERS—DEH B —R/VERRAENMEEHR
BMTREAABUEHRUETELRETRERS - HE
BRZE—=ZFETK °

BRAGEBENFERRABEXIREDET&2HE/EA
EBREEEFRBESL  BiB14,000REHEBLFCD T
RNt e AEERENBLR - BEFRLS ORFT) BRAFN
FEEENFEIRFIRBEARBEERZERAH AKX
ERHEHENBERFEESERRS  MZABECR S
T——F+— ARIEFELT -



During the Year, we initiated the certification process of our EV fast
charging station EFS-10, which was jointly developed with the Hong Kong
Automotive Parts and Accessory Systems R&D Centre. The certification
process is expected to be completed in late 2013. While the R&D project
for 2x50KW charging station has been undergoing, we submitted a new
R&D proposal for the approval of Innovation and Technology Commission.
The project objective is to develop an integrated EV fast charging solution
compliance with the Combo Charging Standard (“CCS”). CCS is the
newly unified and published EV charging standard for North America and
Europe automakers. The key technology will be on the charging control
algorithms over power line communication protocols between off-board
conductive charger and battery management system. Being very positive
towards the opportunities related to electric vehicle, ITE shall continue to
invest into the technologies and related solutions.

During the Year, our R&D arm, RF Tech Limited (“RFT”) is pleased to
receive two industry awards: “Embedded Computer Vision and RFID
"HOMAC® RD-200AB ISO
15693 Handheld Antenna Reader” won the Certificate of Merits in
the 2012 Hong Kong RFID Awards. "HOMAC® RD-200AB ISO 15693
Handheld Antenna Reader” also won 2012 Hong Kong Awards for

Enabled Book Enrolment Mechanism” and

Industries: Machinery and Machine Tools Design Certificate Merit.

Colleagues and friends of ITE continued to support social caring activities.
We participated in the Suicide Prevention Services (“SPS”) Charity Walk
2013 and achieved our fund-raising target. All donations will be used in
SPS services to serving people of all ages in Hong Kong who are suicidal,
in despair or emotionally distressed by befriending them, and offering
services to help them to regain control of their emotions and find the
will to carry on. We also welcome eleven new interns joining the Group.
They come from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and The Chinese
University of Hong Kong with different engineering disciplines ranging
from computing, electronic, industrial, information, mechanical and system
engineering. ITE has been supporting Internship Program for University
Undergraduates since 2006. We assist them to gain solid experience and
knowledge in their fields through actual work responsibilities. Up to 2012,
more than 60 interns have completed their on-the-job training programs
with ITE.

Management Discussion and Analysis

EREHBEA

FRBEBRETHEREFRL] AIEREN 4
% ) B R R 75 F UAEFS-10] (Smart Electric Vehicle Fast
Charging Station EFS-10)5 5 HZXCHAdeMO Association
RBERCEARUERF  UHER_ZT—=FETK - &
REBETHR - — B[ 2x50TREBHE S EREFTE
REGAIAEERE - MB —IBREREE TSR [EIFFR
REI|EH] - EHEZENADT  EREEHDEZBIAR
& b3 UM B R ELE B £ E S MR 4ECombo  Charging
Standard * BT BFBIEFEE - BBABHNERIE
EARERNEBHLERRAGETEERE - HREHTED
BRAEBIRRED  ITESEER AN ERIFE -

FR- KK EKEHRE®STF A FRF Tech Limited
(IRFT]) - MASHEMEMRIFTESF - [HOMAC® RD-
200AB ISO 15693 Handheld Antenna Reader &7 41 4854 51
BT F 5B | 4208 [2012B B Ty 2Eae - a2 ik
WIAZTEERS] k2012 BEETIASIKNEER
EE | MIEKE 5 —E M [Embedded Computer Vision
and RFID Enabled Book Enrolment Mechanism | [F# 25 &

[2012FBBRITARFIAREREE | -

EEMEEM BECEARBZE ERLEENZLE
B AREMERBRIFSFBHIT2EBZRDEY A TE
MAGRI[E e Z e 1T] BELTT201385 - [HEm AR A
BIRAN RKE BB RIBEREBHERENHAL
REftas K RIERT BRRTS - EFIBE R NE & - (tmE
BEHAE AEEAANBEERE T —REEBLHE £
EREBFEBIRBERBFATXRENTRAIRER &
TEAFERTE - EFTiE BATE BHELERT
2L ARERN _TRARFLEB2ERBTERSELE
BEEE RARZERUBAEILIFEEERS - &
ECE-FE BBATERBEENTERIN TR IE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR AN

Future Prospect

Since our establishment, we have been focusing on our core business and
technologies, we continue to devote our efforts and resources for the long
term growth of the Group building on our Innovation, Technology and
Excellency; three words which best explain the name of ITE.

All members of the Company performed professionally under the
corporate vision, mission and core values. Every year, new intellectual
assets are created and accumulated and the range of professional services
is expanded to meet the fast growing needs of the changing market. We
have firmly maintained our position as the pure rider to provide multi-
applications solutions to our clients. The Group has managed to recover
profitability, the Directors shall continue to focus on improving efficiency
and effectiveness so that profitability will be maintained for the next fiscal

year.
Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recorded a total turnover
of approximately HK$28 million, representing an increase of 10% over
last year. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2013 was approximately HK$1.1 million
as compared to that of loss attributable to owners of the Company
approximately HK$1.8 million for last year.

Segmental Information

During the year, the Group recorded an increment in turnover for about
10% when compared with last year. Besides, the Group’s gross profit
margin has improved from 29% in last year to 36% in current year.

The service revenue generated from core business, i.e. the provision of
the smartcard systems, RFID and information technology (“IT") services
and related sales, was HK$12,538,782 (2012: HK$12,873,845) which was
slightly decreased by 3%. However, the income from maintenance services
was increased by 8% to HK$9,375,500 (2012: HK$8,704,725).

For consultancy service segment, the turnover increased by 49% to

HK$6,450,295 (2012: HK$4,324,891). The profit margin had dropped
from 11% to 9%.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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AEERIES BB BRRARDRABRELE - H8&
EOIROEB LB 2hEEREERNER L
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IQI% .ﬁ%ﬁ? [) 1 3% Bt 1k &R = o ) 5 26 2 R PR 7%
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With our continual tighter cost control during the severe financial
situation, the Group’s administrative expenses had increased by only 1%.

With our continual working capital improvement, the finance costs
decreased by 62% to HK$31,711 (2012: HK$83,019) for the year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with its internally generated
cash flows and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2013, the Group did
not have any outstanding borrowings. As at 31 March 2013, the current
ratio of the Group was 2.56 (2012: 3.09) while the liquidity ratio was 2.37
(2012: 2.74).

The Group continues to adopt a conservative approach towards its
treasury policy. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit evaluations of the financial condition of its
customers. Besides, the Group’s liquidity and financing arrangements are
also reviewed regularly.

Taking into consideration the banking facilities granted, stringent cost
control and the existing financial resources available to the Group, it is
believed that the Group should have adequate financial resources to meet
its operation, development requirements and investments in the future.

Significant Investments
The Group had no significant investments during the year under review.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals of Subsidiaries
and Affiliated Companies

During the year under review, the Group had no acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

Employment Information

The Group recognises that its staff is one of the Group’s most important
assets. Aiming at providing competitive salary packages, the Group
adjusts employees’ salary level in close association with the performance,
qualifications and experience of individual staff as well as labour market
conditions. In addition to the regular remuneration, discretionary bonus
and share options may be awarded to eligible employees with reference
to individual performance and the Group’s business performance.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group enjoys good relations with staff and has not experienced any
disruption of operations due to major labour disputes. In addition to
the remuneration as mentioned above, the Group also provides fringe
benefits which comply with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC
and Hong Kong including contributions to social security scheme of the
PRC and contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme of Hong
Kong. Besides, the Group also provides on-going training programmes for
its employees to keep them abreast of the latest market trends and new
technologies.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had 71 (2012: 68) full-time employees,
of which 66 are based in Hong Kong and the rest are in the PRC and
Macao. Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration, was approximately
HK$17 million (2012: HK$15 million) for the year ended 31 March 2013.
During the year, the Company has not granted any share option to any of
its Directors and employees.

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2013, time deposits of HK$2,212,053 (2012:
HK$2,206,643) was pledged to banks to secure certain banking facilities
of the Group.

Future Plans for Material Investments

The Group did not have any plans for material investment and acquisition
of material capital assets as at 31 March 2013.

Gearing Ratio
At 31 March 2013, the gearing ratio of the Group, which is calculated as

the ratio of total secured bank loans due after one year to shareholders’
funds, was nil (2012: nil).
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group's assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are mainly
denominated in HK$, United States dollars (“US$"),
("MOP") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The exchange rates between HK$, US$,
MOP and RMB have been very steady for the past few years. During the

Macau Patacas

year, the Group generally used the receipts from customers and bank
loans to pay its suppliers and meet its capital requirements. They are
denominated in the local currency of the place in which the subsidiaries
operate. The Group does not currently engage in hedging to manage
possible exchange rate risk as the Group considers the cost associated
with such hedging arrangements would exceed the benefits. However,
management will continue to monitor the possible exposure to exchange
rate risk and will take such measures as it deems prudent.

Contingent Liability

At 31 March 2013, the Company has issued corporate guarantee to a
bank in respect of banking facilities granted to a wholly owned subsidiary.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Company is firmly committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
emphasising transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness. The Board ensures that effective self-requlatory practices exist to
protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the code
“Code")
contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the

on the Growth Enterprises Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March
2013, save for the deviations discussed below.

Under the code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent is both the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company who is responsible for managing the Board and
the Group’s business. Mr. Lau has been both chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company since its incorporation. The Board considers that,
with the present board structure and scope of business of the Group,
there is no imminent need to separate the roles into two individuals as
Mr. Lau is perfectly capable of distinguishing the priority of these roles
in which he has been acting. However, the Board will continue to review
the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether the separation of the positions of chairman and chief executive
officer is necessary.

Under the code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. However,
the non-executive Directors do not have a specific term of appointment,
but are subject to rotation in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2013. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings throughout the year ended
31 March 2013.

Board of Directors and Board Meeting

The Board which currently comprises four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and business development of the Group. Details of
the Directors are set in the section “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report. All Directors give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. To the best knowledge of the Board,
there is no financial, business and family relationship among the members
of the Board except that Mr. Liu Hoi Wah is the younger brother of Mr.

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent.

All independent non-executive Directors, do not have any business or
significant financial interests with the Group and each of them have
confirmed their independence to the Group pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Based on the above-mentioned, the Board considers
that all independent non-executive Directors were independent.

With the various experience of both the executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors and the nature of the Group's
business, the Board considers that the Directors have a balance of skills
and experience for the business of the Group.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Such regular meetings will normally involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors entitled to be present.
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During the year ended 31 March 2013, four board meetings were held
and the following is an attendance record of the meetings by each
Director.

Attendance

Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent 4/4
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung 4/4
Mr. George Roger Manho 2/4
Mr. Liu Hoi Wah 3/4
Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen 4/4
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony 4/4
Mr. Tang Siu, Henry

(resigned on 8 August 2012)
Mr. Wong Wang Fat, Andrew

(newly appointed on 1 October 2012) 2/3

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and formulate
the overall strategies of the Group, monitor financial performances and
discuss the annual, interim and quarterly results, as well as discuss and
decide on other significant matters. Execution of daily operational matters
is delegated to management.

Notice of regular board meeting is usually given at least 14 days in
advances to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. An agenda for
each board meeting will be prepared and normally distributed to the
Directors together with necessary board papers and related materials at
least four days before the board meeting. Directors are free to add any
items on the agenda as they may think fit. The Company Secretary is
responsible for recording the matters considered and decisions reached by
the Board including any concerns or dissenting views raised by Directors.
Minutes of board meetings and the board committees meetings will be
sent to all Directors for their comments and records as soon as after the
board meeting.

Minutes of board meetings and board committees meetings are kept by

the Company Secretary and such minutes are open for inspection within

reasonable advance notice.
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All Directors have access to relevant and timely information, and they can
ask for further information or retain independent professional advisors if
necessary. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and service of
the Company Secretary, who is responsible for providing Directors with
board papers and related materials and ensuring that board procedures
are followed.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder
or Director arise, the matter is discussed in an actual meeting, as opposed
to being dealt with by written resolution. Independent non-executive
Directors with no conflict of interest are present at meetings dealing with
conflict issues. Board committees, including the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees, all follow the applicable practices and procedures
used in board meetings for committee meetings.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Company did not segregate the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer. The role of the chief executive officer was performed by
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, who was the then existing chairman of the
Company during the year under review. Apart from the reason of such
deviation mentioned above, the Board also believes that vesting the roles
of both chairman and chief executive officer in the same person provides
the Company with strong and consistent leadership, and allows for
effective and efficient planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies.

The Board will periodically review the merits and demerits of such
management structure and will adopt such appropriate measures as may
be necessary in the future taking into consideration of the nature and
extent of the Group's operation.
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Audit Committee

As required by Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with written
terms of reference. Following the retirement of Mr. Tang Siu, Henry
as a member of the Audit Committee on 8 August 2012, the Audit
Committee comprises only two independent non-executive directors, Dr.
Lee Peng Fei, Allen and Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony. Dr. Lee Peng Fei,
Allen was appointed as chairman of the Audit Committee. The number
of independent non-executive directors fell below the minimum number
required under Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules until the
Company appointed Mr. Wong Wang Fat, Andrew to fill the vacancy on 1
October 2012.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and accounts, half-yearly report and quarterly reports and to
provide advices and comments thereon to the Board. The audit committee
meets at least four times a year with management to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and to discuss
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters. The principal
terms of reference includes, inter alia, its relationship with the Company’s
external auditor, review of the Company’s financial information and
oversight of the financial reporting system and internal control procedures
of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, four audit committee meetings
were held and the following is an attendance record of the meetings by
each Director.

Attendance

Name of Directors
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen 4/4
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony 4/4
Mr. Tang Siu, Henry

(resigned on 8 August 2012)
Mr. Wong Wang Fat, Andrew

(newly appointed on 1 October 2012) 2/3

The Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 have
been reviewed by the audit committee, who is of the opinion that such
statements comply with the applicable accounting standards, the GEM
Listing Rules and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures had
been made.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on 1 August 2005
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The roles
and functions of the remuneration committee include the determination
of the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, such as any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment, and make recommendations
to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors. Members
of the remuneration committee include Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen, Mr. Kam
Hau Choi, Anthony, Mr. Wong Wang Fat, Andrew and Mr. Lau Hon
Kwong, Vincent, with Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen as chairman. A majority of
the votes in the remuneration committee are exercisable by independent
non-executive Directors. No Director will be involved in any discussion in

connection with his own remuneration.

The remuneration committee schedules meet at least once a year. During
the year, one remuneration committee meeting was held to review the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and the directors’ fees
of the independent non-executive Directors and the following is an
attendance record of the meeting by each Director.

Attendance

Name of Directors
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen 171
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony 11
Mr. Tang Siu, Henry

(resigned on 8 August 2012)
Mr. Wong Wang Fat, Andrew

(newly appointed on 1 October 2012) 0/1
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent 1

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 8 December 2005
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. Members of
the nomination committee include Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen, Mr. Kam Hau
Choi, Anthony, Mr. Wong Wang Fat, Andrew and Mr. Lau Hon Kwong,
Vincent, with Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen as chairman.
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The nomination committee shall meet before the annual general meeting
of the Company, or at other times as required by the chairman of the
nomination committee.

The roles and functions of the nomination committee include the
appointment and removal of Directors, reviews the background,
experience, qualification, general market conditions and the Company’s
articles of association in selecting and recommending candidates for

directorship.

During the Year, one nomination committee meeting was held and the
following is an attendance record of the meeting by each Director.

Attendance

Name of Directors
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen 71
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony 11
Mr. Tang Siu, Henry

(resigned on 8 August 2012)
Mr. Wong Wang Fat, Andrew

(appointed on 1 October 2012) 0/1
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent 7

During the meeting, members considered and resolved that all the existing
Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the Company. Further,
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung, Mr. Liu Hoi Wah and Mr. Wong Wang Fat,
Andrew will retire from the Board in accordance with Articles 108 and
112 of the Company’s articles of association at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Group.

The statements of external auditor of the Company, Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 35
to 36 of this annual report.
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Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls
of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. In order to maintain
a sound and effective internal control for safeguarding the Company’s
assets and shareholders’ interests, the Board has adopted internal control
policy and procedures (the “Internal Control”) within the Company. The
Internal Control is designed to provide reasonable assurance against
misappropriate use of the Company’s assets and to manage the Group’s

operational system in an efficient manner.

The Internal Control mainly covers areas of finance, operations and
compliance. The Company shall conduct an annual review of the Internal
Control to assess its effectiveness and shall make recommendations to the
Board if any significant areas of concern are identified.

External Auditors

The audit committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditors of the Group. In particular, the audit committee will
consider, in advance of them being contracted for such service, whether
such non-audit service could lead to any potential material conflict of
interest. Nothing has come to its attention to cause the audit committee
to believe that the non-audit services provided by the external auditors
affect their independence, objectivity and effectiveness in the audit
process in accordance with applicable standard.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the fee payable to the auditors in
respect of audit services amounted to HK$330,000 while the fee payable
to the auditors in respect of non-audit services relating to the taxation
amounted to HK$43,200.
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TERERHRS

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting and to Put Forward Proposal

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law
(2012 Revision). However, shareholders are requested to follow article
64 of the Articles of Association of the Company, general meetings shall
be convened on the written requisition of any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisition(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
director of the Company are laid down in article 113 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be eligible
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless a
notice in writing of the intention to propose such person for election as a
Director, signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed
for election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head
office or at the Registration Office. The minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given shall be at least seven (7) days and
the period for lodgement of such notices shall commence no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting.
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Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may send their enquiries
or requests in respect of their rights to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and transparent
communication with all shareholders. The Directors host annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders and answer their enquiries.
The Company uses various communication channels, such as publication
of annual and quarterly reports, press announcements and circulars,
to update the shareholders on the Group’s business developments and
financial performance. Such information is also available on the Company’s
website: http://www.hkite.com.
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graphical Details of Directors & Senior Management

O
-
= = /

lmt 2

Jhnl

g&%/\&%iﬁl

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, aged 49, is an Executive Director, Chief
Executive Officer and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible
for overall strategic planning and management of the Group. With over
26 years of experience in the executive management, he was engaged
in China trade before founding the Group. Mr. Lau graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with a first class honours Degree of Bachelor
of Science in Mechanical Engineering. He holds a number of invention
patents and has led many research and development projects under the
funding schemes of the Innovation Technology Commission of Hong Kong
Government. He is the industrial advisor to the Engineering Departments
of The City University of Hong Kong and and The Chinese University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. George Roger Manho, aged 50, is an Executive Director and one
of the founders of the Group. Mr. Manho has 25 years of experience
in the control and automation industries, electrical and mechanical
projects and engineering management. He is a Chartered Engineer and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers, The Institute of Marine
Engineers and The Hong Kong Institute of Marine Technology and the
Institution of Fire Engineers. He holds a Master degree in Engineering
Studies in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Sydney and a
Bachelor of Science (Engineering) degree with first class honours in Marine
Engineering from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne.

Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung, aged 50, is an Executive Director and one of
the founders of the Group. He is responsible for technical management
and research and development (R&D). With 29 years of experience in R&D
and production management, Mr. Cheng won the awards of the Hong
Kong Awards for Industry for seven times (two Machinery and Equipment
Design in 2005 and 2007, one Consumer Product Design in each of 1993,
2000 and 2001 and two Designs in 1997). He holds a Higher Diploma in
Electronics Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Biographical Details of Directors & Senior Management

Mr. Liu Hoi Wah, aged 44, is an Executive Director of the Group. He
is responsible for financial management, accounting and corporate
development. He joined the Group in March 2000. Mr. Liu graduated from
The London School of Economics and Political Science of the University
of London with a Bachelor of Science degree, first class honours in
Management Sciences. He is an associate member of each of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (“ICAEW") and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Mr. Liu is the
younger brother of Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen, cge, Bs, FHKIE, J, aged 73, holds an honorary
doctoral degree in engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and an honorary doctoral in laws from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He was formerly a member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council
from 1978 to 1997 and a senior member of the Hong Kong Legislative
Council from 1988 to 1991. Dr. Lee was also a member of the Hong
Kong Executive Council from 1985 to 1992. He was appointed as the
Company’s independent non-executive director in December 2000.

Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony, aged 47, is the Managing Director of
Anthony Kam & Associates Limited, Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kam
holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Wolverhampton,
the United Kingdom, and a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Kam is a fellow member of the HKICPA and
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA"), an associate
member of the ICAEW and a member of the Hong Kong Securities
Institute. Mr. Kam has over 23 years’' experience in auditing, accounting
and tax matters, both in private and public companies. He was appointed
as the Company’s independent non-executive director on 30 September
2004.

Mr. Wong Wang Fat, Andrew, 0.BE. (Hon), JP, aged 69, holds a Bachelor
of Arts (Honours) degree in literature from The University of Hong Kong
and a Master of Public Administration degree from the Syracuse University,
USA. He was formerly a member of the Legislative Council from 1985 to
2004 and was also the President of the Legislative Council from 1995 to
1997. Mr. Wong had been lecturing at the Chinese University of Hong
Kong since 1970 and is now retired. He was appointed as the Company’s
independent non-executive director on 1 October 2012.
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Biographical Details of Directors & Senior Management
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Senior Management

Mr. But Wui Fai, Cyrus, aged 45, is an associated director (Project and
Sales) of the Group. Mr. But is responsible for management of project
commissioning of the Group. With 22 years of experience in IT and RFID
industry on project management, systems design and implementation. Mr.
But had achieved numerous project assignments in government sectors,
public utilities, tertiary institutions and public listed companies. He worked
for 10 years in an IT consultancy company in Hong Kong before joining
the Group in September 2001.

Miss Yeung Yuen Chun, Mona, aged 39, is the Financial Controller and
associated director of the Group. Miss. Yeung is responsible for managing
the Group’s finance and accounting operations, performing statutory
and management reporting. Miss. Yeung has over 16 years in auditing,
accounting and financial analysis. She is an associate member of the
ICAEW and a fellow member of the ACCA and the HKICPA. She holds a
Bachelor Degree of Business Administration (Honours) in Accounting from
the Hong Kong Baptist University.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting herewith their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

Principal activities

The principal activity of ITE (Holdings) Limited (the “company”) is
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “group”) during the financial year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Major customers and suppliers
The information in respect of the group’s turnover and purchases

attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
financial year is as follows:
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Percentage of the group’s total

HAREEAEEIL
Turnover Purchases
EHH e
The largest customer ISYNCYE 15% -
Five largest customers in aggregate RARBE 45T 49% -
The largest supplier wAEIER - 13%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR ER LR - 35%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

Financial statements
The profit of the group for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the state

of the company’s and the group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 37 to 98.
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ESERE

Reserves
Profit attributable to owners of the company of HK$1,061,660 (2012: loss
of HK$1,841,113) has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in

reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$Nil).

Charitable donations

Charitable donations made by the group during the year amounted to
HK$3,000 (2012: HK$4,500).

Fixed assets

Details of the movements in the fixed assets of the group are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the company are set out
in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the company’s articles
of association and there was no restriction against such rights under the

laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Directors

The directors during the financial year were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung

Mr. George Roger Manho
Mr. Liu Hoi Wah

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen

Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony

Mr. Tang Siu, Henry (resigned on 8 August 2012)

Mr. Wong Wang Fat, Andrew (newly appointed on 1 October 2012)

In accordance with Articles 108 and 112 of the company’s articles of
association, Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung, Mr. Liu Hoi Wah and Mr. Wong Wang
Fat, Andrew will retire from the board by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

Directors’ service contracts

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung and Mr. Liu Hoi
Wah have entered into service contracts with the company on 1 March
2013 for an initial fixed term of one year commencing from 1 April 2013
which will continue thereafter until terminated by three months notice in

writing served by either party on the other.

Mr. George Roger Manho has entered into a service contract with
the company on 1 January 2013 for an initial fixed term of one year
commencing from 1 January 2013 which will continue thereafter until
terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other.

Except for the above, none of the directors proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the company, or any of its subsidiaries, within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of each director
and chief executive of the company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), which were notified to the company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, including any interests and short positions
which they have taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”), to be notified to the company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

Interests in issued shares of the company

EERTHRAZREKMD - HBEROKE
SRERNERRAR

RZFB-—=F=ZA=1t—H0  ARAAZSEZTRITHEHR
BES LG ERPIE15.7RE158KHHRE  AARHE
EfEREE (B R CGEF RIS R ([FEHE]) &
THE)  BEANGARTRZZANKN - BERD RE
FHEANEERAR (BREREEREINZSHERR
REREERNERIORE) - XA AR IERE RIS
32T LAFEMELMA - RIFEAIFR EHRAFS.46
5681 PTE AR B MR MG A D F R 5 PRSI
BEIIAT

RAB R EDS

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

BRO.0IEBETSERRE
Percentage
of total

Personal Corporate Family Other issued shares
Name of Director interests interests interests interests Total HERTRS
HENSR EARER hEER Rk HitrEs At Bok
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent 6,108,000 (L) 241,102,348 (L) - - 247,210,348 (L) 26.56%
2IEN Rt (Note 2) (Pif7E2)
Mr. George Roger Manho 63,142,254 (L) - - - 63,142,254 (L) 6.79%
BE#LE
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung 133,628,000 (L) - - - 133,628,000 (L) 14.36%
BRE A 5 A
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen 1,760,000 (L) - - - 1,760,000 (L) 0.19%

FhREL
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Notes:
1. The letter “L"” denotes a long position in the shares.
2. These shares are beneficially owned by Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited (“Rax-Comm”),

a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Lau Hon Kwong,
Vincent held 67.94% of the entire issued share capital of Rax-Comm.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the directors,
chief executive of the company or their associates had any interests
in the shares or debentures of, or short positions in the shares of, the
company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
including interests or short positions which they have taken or deemed
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the
GEM Listing Rules, were required to be notified to the company and the
Stock Exchange.

Directors’ and chief executive’s rights to acquire
shares or debt securities

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures”, at no time during the year was the company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors and chief
executive of the company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debt securities, including debentures, of the company or
any other body corporate, and none of the directors and chief executive
of the company or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for the securities of the company, or had exercised any

such rights.
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Interests and short positions of shareholders in
the shares and underlying shares

As at 31 March 2013, the following persons, other than a director or chief
executive of the company, had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to any
director or chief executive of the company:

3

EEHEOITRREARBENERZ R KA

RZB-—=F=A=+—08 BREZHEIIFE3IB6KTAT
BENECMAER MR ERNARBEERITHRAEA -
THAL (RRABEERITHRAHKRIN) RAQ BN K
HER D A MOAR

Number of Percentage of

ordinary shares held total issued shares

Name of shareholder FEEBER HEBITRD W

IR A RGEAR BaotE

Rax-Comm (Note 1) 241,102,348 2591%

Rax-Comm (Fff3E1)

Mr. Lau Hoi Chuen (Note 2) 55,938,388 6.01%

21811554 (MEE2)

Notes: B3

1. These shares have been disclosed as the corporate interests of the relevant 1. ZERGER [EFRITHEHR KD - HEAKRG REH
directors in the section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and BN ERRAR | — S REAETRESTNEER -
short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”.

2. Mr. Lau Hoi Chuen is the elder brother of Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent. 2. 2B ETIBIE N L ERTTH -

Save as disclosed above, the company had not been notified of any other B EXFIHEN RZZ—=F=A=+—H  RELH

person, other than directors or the chief executive of the company, who
had an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying shares
of the company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and so far is known to any
director or chief executive of the company as at 31 March 2013.

Share option schemes

Details of the company’s share option schemes are set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Purchase, sale and redemption of shares of the
company

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiary has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the company’s shares during the year.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a director of the company had a material

interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the company were

entered into or in existence during the year.
Connected transactions

There were no transactions which should be disclosed in the annual report
as connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Five year summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 99 of the annual report.

Emolument policy

The emolument policy for the employees of the group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

Sufficiency of public float

The company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 March 2013.

Confirmation of independence

The company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

Auditor

A resolution for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
as auditor of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The company has not changed its auditors in the past
five years.

By order of the board

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG KBt

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
ITE (Holdings) Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ITE (Holdings)
Limited (the “company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “group”) set out on pages 37 to 98, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

¥ N A% SR R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AV Ty

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the group as at 31
March 2013, and of the group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 June 2013

Choi Kwong Yu

Practising certificate number P0O5071
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AR e 2 A s

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

Note 2013 =2 —=% 2012 —&B——4%

PsE HK$#E T HK$2 7T

Turnover =E 2] 4 28,364,577 25,903,461
Cost of services rendered ERHRIE A (17,874,639) (17,972,676)
Cost of sales BEEEMRIAAR (279,296) (510,952)
Gross profit EF 10,210,642 7,419,833
Other gains and losses H Al K& E 5 155,521 15,930
Administrative expenses THER (9,272,792) (9,185,607)
Profit/(loss) from operations LERF(FR) 1,093,371 (1,749,844)
Finance costs BE KA 6(a) (31,711) (83,019)
Profit/(loss) before taxation ERBLADER (FE) 6 1,061,660 (1,832,863)
Income tax FifS#i 7(a) - (8,250)
Profit/(loss) attributable to AATEE A FEREERER(FE)

owners of the company 10 1,061,660 (1,841,113)
Other comprehensive expense  Hftt2E % H 11
Exchange differences on translating 4P R HyRE =58

foreign operations (8,476) (106,248)
Total comprehensive income/ FREEMBA (X)) #58

(expense) for the year 1,053,184 (1,947,361)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRER (EHE) 12
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARRESE CG5(L) 0.11 (0.20)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated P& EVF}FE AR L 4R A BTSRRI — 21D ©
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Are SRR

At 31 March 2013 ( Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) R=Z—=F=A=+—8 (JABsIE)

Note 2013 —F—=F 2012 ZF——4F

P sE HK$#E T HK$Z 7T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE 14 374,664 42,708
Current assets RBEE
Inventories = 17 1,227,609 1,528,980
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 N2 EoAth g R 30 18 6,292,999 6,523,335
Financial assets at fair value FPRERRIRATERENSREE
through profit or loss 20 751,260 768,380
Pledged bank deposits BIRITFK 21 2,212,053 2,206,643
Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTHEES 21 5,485,254 2,305,979
15,969,175 13,333,317
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables FERNE 5 K& E b FE SRR 22 5,578,439 3,629,218
Provisions B 23 631,852 669,045
Income tax payable FERFTEEL 24 19,711 17,109
6,230,002 4,315,372
Net current assets hRBEEZE 9,739,173 9,017,945
Net assets EEBE 10,113,837 9,060,653
Capital and reserves BERRHE 27
Share capital A& 9,305,920 9,305,920
Reserves i 807,917 (245,267)
Total equity R 10,113,837 9,060,653

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 June EEER-T— =% NA+HBEERRETE -

2013.

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent Cheng Kwok Hung LS BREH 1
Director Director EE Ex

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated  Fif#s e Fff 5 A AR R UL S 4R A B TSRz 0 — 2B 1%

financial statements.
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Company Statement of Financial Position

NCIE IR0

At 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) R=Z—=F=A=+—8 (L\BTHIE)

Note 2013 =2 —=% 2012 —&B——4%

PsE HK$#E T HK$2 7T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B A TRE 16 4,000,000 4,000,000
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A RIMREK 16 - -
Deposits and prepayments HEICR -4 18 168,760 187,915
Cash and bank balances & NIRTT4 % 21 456,855 67,667

625,615 255,582

Current liabilities RBEE
Accrued charges and other payables [&5t% F & H A fE IR TX 22 345,062 473,895
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (B8E8) FE 280,553 (218,313)
Net assets BEEFE 4,280,553 3,781,687
Capital and reserves ERR G 27
Share capital REAR 9,305,920 9,305,920
Reserves i (5,025,367) (5,524,233)
Total equity MR 4,280,553 3,781,687

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 June EZEER T —=FXA+IBZMERKETE -
2013.

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent Cheng Kwok Hung 2% BB 2
Director Director BF BF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated — FITEEIMTsE BAER L SR E B ISIRET N —3BH ©
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ey e L

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BZE=—ZT—=F=A=+—HALFE (LUBTHE)

Reserves
s
Share Share Merger Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
SEESR
BRA& R EE EXiaz ] RitEE &t

HK$7B 7T HK$7E 7T HK$E 7T HK$ETT HK$B T HK$7B 7T

Balance at 1 April 2011 —E——FOH B 9,357,280 25,322,792 10,748,910 392,067 (34,437,965) 11,383,084

Total comprehensive expense  ERZE X HHEE

for the year - - - (106,248) (1,841,113) (1,947,361)
Repurchase of shares EIRERLD (Pt sE27(a)i))
(note 27(a)(ii)) (51,360) (323,710) - - - (375,070)

Balance at 31 March 2012 NZE——F=A=1+—H
and 1 April 2012 R=—F——FF—B#ER 9,305,920 24,999,082 10,748,910 285,819  (36,279,078) 9,060,653

Total comprehensive income FRZEBALE
for the year = = = (8,476) 1,061,660 1,053,184

Balance at 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=1+—H#&#H 9,305920 24,999,082 10,748,910 277,343 (35217,418) 10,113,837

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated  Hf#&IK st BRI Z47 A MBS HRE N — B0
financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
,\\/T\/\EE N ;ﬁiﬁ%

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)
Note 2013 =F—=§ 2012 = F——F
FisE HKS$E 7T HK$E 7T
Operating activities R
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRATRF (B1E) 1,061,660 (1,832,863)
Adjustments for: ST RIEEY i
- (Gain)/loss on disposal of financial — HEFBERRREATLERENS R
assets at fair value through BER (W), B
profit or loss 5 (21,010) 2,489
— Fair value (gain)/loss on financial FIRBRIRIRY EFEJ‘EIEE’]%EQEE
assets at fair value through WATE (W), EiE
profit or loss 5 (11,431) 229,862
— Interest income — FBUA 5 (10,230) (22,875)
— Finance costs — AR 6(a) 31,711 83,019
— Depreciation — e 6(c) 107,248 56,179
— Exchange difference —EHERE (15,593) (108,252)
— Provisions — BE 6(c) 754,082 858,147
— Reversal of unused provisions — KB B g ol ¢ 6(c) (791,275) (497,795)
— Write-off of inventories — 1FEMY 6(c) 71,718 163,868
Operating profit/(loss) before REBELSEANEERT (FE)
changes in working capital 1,176,880 (1,068,221)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEEEA (L) 229,653 (141,674)
Decrease in trade and other receivables  JEUE 5 & E i fE U iR TR > 230,336 370,519
Increase/(decrease) in trade and BB 5 R H i EMIREZE I CRl
other payables 1,949,221 (617,035)
Cash generated from/(used in) ¥KELE (A Be
operations 3,586,090 (1,456,411)
Interest paid BERFIE (31,711) (83,019)
Tax refund REIFIR 2,602 29,745
Tax paid [RANEIESS - (12,047)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEEKEL /(FiH) BE&FE
operating activities 3,556,981 (1,521,732)
Investing activities REEE
Purchase of fixed assets BEBETEE (439,285) (13,228)
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits BB=EAMBEER (32m), Hd
with terms over three months (629,300) 476,000
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets B BIBRRIEAFERENSREE
at fair value through profit or loss mA /() 49,561 (57,321)
Interest received B U RIS 10,230 22,875
Net cash (used in)/generated from  R&EH (FiA),/ EL£REFE
investing activities (1,008,794) 428,326

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated P& aVBf st AR I 4R A BMISIRE A — 261D
financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
=IPAN A2 B
% \l/:\f/ﬁb il /ﬁi
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

Note 2013 —F—=% 2012 — & ——4F
Pt HK$& 7T HK$ETT
Financing activities MEED
Repurchase of shares 1§ 27(a) i) - (375,070)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged BB TEFE (L), R
bank deposits, net (5,410) 3,609,497
Decrease in bank loans, net RITIEEFERD - (1,821,100)
Net cash (used in)/generated from @& EE (Fif)  ELRELFE
financing activities (5,410) 1,413,327
Net increase in cash and ReRBEEEYFEEM
cash equivalents 2,542,777 319,921
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April RNA—HHWHEERREEEY 2,305,979 1,984,273
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 9] [ & & 5 1) 7 £ 7,198 1,785
Cash and cash equivalents REA=ZT-—HHNHEERBEEEEY
at 31 March 21 4,855,954 2,305,979

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated P& EVF} At AR L 4R A BTSRRI — 21D ©
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)

A=

General information

ITE (Holdings) Limited (the “company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
of the principal place of business of its operating subsidiaries is
Level 10, Park Building, 476 Castle Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong

Cayman Islands. The address

Kong. The company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the company collectively
referred to as the “group”) are set out in note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), except where indicated otherwise, which is also
the functional currency of the company.

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2013 comprise the company and its subsidiaries (together
the “group”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the group is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4=

ire SRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

(b)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the group and the company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the group for the current and prior accounting

periods reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

The group and the company have not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period (see note 33).

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the significant accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 32.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. Control exists
when the group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that are
presently exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains

but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)
(ii). The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the company
on the basis of dividend received or receivable.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)

(i)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold improvements Qver the shorter of the lease terms

and 4 years
— Furniture and fixtures 4 years
— Computer and other 4 years

equipment

The useful life of an asset, its depreciation method and residual

value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4=

ire SRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(d)

(e)

()

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Fixed assets (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the

reversal occurs.
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 2(i)i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Service contracts

When the outcome of a service contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. When the outcome of a service contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Service contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period
are recorded at the net amount of costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses and progress billings, and are
presented in the statement of financial position as the “Gross
amount due from customers for service contract work” (as an
asset) or the “Gross amount due to customers for service contract
work” (as a liability), as when applicable. Progress billings not yet
paid by the customers are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position under “Trade and other receivables”. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under “Trade and
other payables”.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either
investments classified as held for trading or designated as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. These
investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these investments are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

If any event or change in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, an impairment loss is determined

and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other receivables carried at cost or amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B s HRaR M e

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade receivables included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each
reporting period to identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:
- fixed assets

- investments in subsidiaries; and

= goodwill

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount

is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwiill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B s HRaR M e

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

2

(0

TESTBER (&)
FriS®

ARERFR/UBEANRBAMELEHREENRAE
EVEEE) o REABIIR RORENIR B E N B ERNE Y
FEHEGER  BEEERERA/SE M2 HK SIS
HEHEREE - A RERRE MRS o

AERBTRAE R ERTRA - RIEBE ERSE
HEMRELD L AERNREFTE L IRRAEN O
B YRBEFERNRIBRELEMREE -

BEEBRIEEERBED BB AR R ERTE K=
REL EREESEEENABERYBEHREH
MIREEEEGENZR - EEHIAEE A AR
AABEBERABRRAERLES -

BT RLFROPIIMER - PIAELEHIAR B RE
FEFRIAE E (RUARIRA] REH FE AR T A1) T LA K 89
MEERR) BEHER - T ERH A EMEFRE
RFEARERBEENRRERD G - BFEE
BORAEANEREZEMELNHNE  BEFHEE
REWARR—HEHENE RN EREH X
TREAE PR B 2 R IAEHE AR — B SR T
MR A FE P EE A O IR B 1R R 12 B3 sk (7] AT B A5 S8 Y
HRARE - RERAFHNERGEREZRES
VA SZ 5 7 78 6 7R P 52 28 5 18 I 3 0 PIT 222 A R ST X
REER - TEeERAR—EA - [ &RFE—HEHE
LR — R ER - MEBERERAERRIAE
BRERNE—MEED - BIFUGFEEA

ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 F3&

51



52

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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B RR M =

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
company or the group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three

months of maturity at acquisition.
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 2(o)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly

attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ii)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee (being the transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the group or the company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into HK$ at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the
date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

2

(p)

AR e B s HRaR M e

BE_ZT-—=F=ZA=+—HLFE CVETIIE)

TESTHE (&)
NSRS

FRRINERZ HRZ 5 AIMNEL B EIE o PASNE
SHENEBEER B BOREE BIMNE LR R
HoBRINERERAENBIIEEREELENER
EBREM2EKRES BRERI - EXREIR
BRERALR

NESL A ENINEFEREERBERRS A
MERIBE - ONEMBERNIFEBEERAEHN
2 H e A ER|E AR FESR

BINETS ) E B R R 5 A IMEE XI5 09 X
HERET MHENAAKRER (BREA-FZTLEF
— A BB KEN S EBmMEENEE) -
AR E RIS E KB BB TT - PTELME
RERBEENEMEE RS KR IIEEL R
ER - HER_ZTHF— A BARKRENEI
EBMENRE B NKRBEIIEBE B LEX
H"RE -

RHEBINERR - BB EBBHENRTTELE
B BERR ABSNFELHERER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 F3&

55



56

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4=

ire SRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:
Service revenue

Service revenue comprises revenue from smartcard systems, radio
frequency identification (“RFID"”), information technology (“IT")

and related service contracts.

Revenue from a fixed price service contract is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to estimated total
contract costs for the contract. When the outcome of a service
contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable.

Consultancy income

Consultancy income is recognised when the consultancy services
are rendered.

Income from maintenance services

Income from maintenance services is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the maintenance service contracts.

Income received or receivable in respect of services which have
not been completed on or before the end of reporting period
are shown in the statement of financial position as deferred
maintenance income.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(r)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value-added tax or other
sales taxes, if any, and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having
a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

2  Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEEFEHEK (&)
(s)  Research and development costs (s) MR

Expenditure on research and development activities is expensed in MERZ DR FANEEREERBR AR °
profit or loss in the year in which it is incurred.

(t) Operating lease charges (t) KEHEXH
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards KERE R EEMB R AR b & B2 F
of ownership to the group are classified as operating leases. EREASENEE
Where the group has the use of assets held under operating MASEEENEEHEREGEENERE  HEE
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit M HIREE A SRR EN AR - HNERF
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered LASEEEHIRR - a0 E b B AEREEEM st R B K AR &
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more & A EE A e as R S RIBR AP ©

representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset.

(u) Borrowing costs (u) FEEHRRK

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the year in which 2MEEXRGREENF N AR o
they are incurred.

(v)  Related parties (v) BEEEAL
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (i) FETHERT » —BATREARANEARE
related to the group if that person: Elsyczbd
(a) has control or joint control over the group; (a) 97N 52 [ 75 42 ) e ok 2k [ 422 L 4
(b) has significant influence over the group; or (b) HAEEEERTEN : 3
(0) is @ member of the key management personnel of (0) RAEESIAEEE AR FEER
the group or the group’s parent. AEB

ITE (Holdings) Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B s HRaR M e

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
(v)  Related parties (continued)

(ii) An entity is related to the group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(a) The entity and the group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(©) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the group or an
entity related to the group.

(f) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.
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(e) ZERIAASESEAEESRH
B E BB A0 (B B 18 A T aR O R AR AR A
AHEl

(9) (i)(a)B P a8 Bl B9 A £ 30 31 B B8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4=

ire SRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(w)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and revised
standards to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the group and the company. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the consolidated financial
statements:

- HKFRS 7 (Amendments), Disclosures — transfers of financial
assets

- HKAS 12 (Amendments), Income taxes — Deferred tax:
Recovery of underlying assets

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on
the consolidated financial statements of the group for the current
or prior accounting periods.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B s HRaR M e

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

Turnover 4

Turnover represents the net sales value of goods supplied to

customers and revenue from services rendered. The amount of

each significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during

the year is as follows:

E -t

BEERE LR TEL N EERIR R 0P
Wik o ERBRALLEE

GiopaNyq

Eo B

2013 =2—=% 2012 =2 —=F
HKS$#E T HK$E T
Provision of smartcard systems, REERERES - FIRHER R
RFID and IT services AR RS
— Service revenue — PRI 11,959,415 11,941,203
— Income from maintenance services — RBERIBHA 9,375,500 8,704,725
— Sales of service related products — HERBHBER 579,367 932,642
21,914,282 21,578,570
Consultancy income B R AR TS U 6,450,295 4,324,891
28,364,577 25,903,461
5  Other gains and losses 5 HtthzmRkEE
2013 =2—=% 2012 =2 —=F
HK$#E T HK$E T
Interest income FBUA 10,230 22,875
Exchange gain, net PE 5 WEFE 22,266 114,684
Dividend income from listed securities ETESBRERA 14,109 20,441
Gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets HEFH BIRRRIR A T ERIER
at fair value through profit or loss SREENWES (EE) 21,010 (2,489)
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets BRERREATEEENSH
at fair value through profit or loss BERNANFERS (EBER) 11,431 (229,862)
Government sponsorship income BT & B A 59,935 59,200
Sundry income E A A 16,540 31,081
155,521 15,930
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

6  Profit/(loss) before taxation 6 BRBAER,(EE)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRIADER(B1E) B30k (GTA) -

2013 =F—=F 2012 "% —F

HKS$3# 7T HK$& T
@) Finance costs: (@) BRE AN
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITEERBXLFIE 31,711 83,019
(b) Staff costs (b) 8 TRA
(including directors’ remuneration) *: (BREESME) ¢ -
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 16,224,798 14,475,045
Retirement scheme contributions (note 25) RIRETEI 30 (fgFE25) 641,035 596,170
16,865,833 15,071,215
(€ Other items: (0 HMIER :
Auditor’s remuneration e & 330,000 320,000
Cost of inventories # FEER A 3,205,347 4,218,607
Depreciation e 107,248 56,179
Development costs T EE Ak A 385,164 479,956
Provisions (note 23) B (F1E23) 754,082 858,147
Operating lease charges: ERELTH
minimum lease payments SEBERE
— hire of properties — YEHE 1,597,622 1,741,849
— hire of office equipment — REIEREAE 45,702 42,042
Reversal of unused provisions (note 23) RENAREEE R (f5E23) (791,275) (497,795)
Write-off of inventories FEME 71,718 163,868
f Staff costs included HK$320,260 (2012: HK$364,344) relating to 3 8 T X A 8 $£320,260%8 T (=T — = F:
development costs, which amount is also disclosed separately in note 364,3447870) IRIFEEA « L EHBEKAD M
6(c). FE6(C) B R o
e Cost of inventories included HK$71,718 (2012: HK$163,868) relating & FERANBIET71,718%8 T (ZZT——4 : 163,868

to write-off of inventories, which amount is also disclosed separately in
note 6(c).

ITE (Holdings) Limited

HIT) TR - b S E A 6B
B -



(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AR e B s HRaR M e

BE_ZT-—=F=ZA=+—HLFE CVETIIE)

Income tax in the consolidated statement 7 #HFREZHEWKBERNAEH
of comprehensive income
Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HFEZXEWBRZKRPHIEIE
comprehensive income represents:
2013 ==—=% 2012 =2 —=%
HKS$#E T HK$%E 7T
Hong Kong profits tax BRREH

— Provision for the year — FREEE - 8,250
The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% FANBBMEHERERTRFA165% (=ZF
(2012: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. — =% :16.5%) ;T & - BN ERBOEFIFIE
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate Al S BIRIRIRITIEN - RRERIEIRAEEKL LR
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant jurisdictions. KEORITREFTH o
No provision for income tax in the People’s Republic of China (the REBRFEATEAEARLME ([FE]) &R
“PRC") and Macao have been made in the consolidated financial PIR] FEAE A Al - BB 75 3R 3R 30 2 AR B K OB P e AR
statements as the group did not have any assessable profits for BM(ZE—ZF &)
taxation purpose in the PRC or Macao during the year (2012:
HK$NI).
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) ZBIEBEXHRETHEF (EE) WEA

profit/(loss) at applicable tax rate:

BERAAEHNT -

2013 =8—=F 2012 =%—=%
HKS$E 7T HK$E T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEALEF/ (EE) 1,061,660 (1,832,863)
Notional tax at the applicable tax rate of 16.5%  #21%16.5% @B XK REHE 175,174 (302,422)
Tax effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries BB A RS L HHEN R
operating in other jurisdictions (Note) B2 (M) (109,647) (58,577)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses THMAERNT BT 2 3,413 2,011
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERRBANT B2 (8,495) (2,636)
Tax effect of prior year's tax losses utilised HAREHEBENTBY 2 (218,730) (157,813)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised R IERR L s =BT IS 5 £ (73,478) 18,640
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised REARARB AT IBEEROHETZ 231,763 509,047
Actual tax expense Frfe R - 8,250

Note:

The applicable tax rate of the company and those subsidiaries that are
incorporated in Hong Kong is 16.5% (2012: 16.5%). The applicable tax rates of
the subsidiaries of the company incorporated outside Hong Kong are as follows:

i ITE (China) Limited is subjected to tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%).

ii ITE Sistema (Macau) Limitada is subject to a progressive tax rate from
3% t0 12% (2012: 3% to 12%).

P &E -

ARAIREREATMOMBARNERTEK165%
ZT—ZF :16.5%) ' MEFBFHFMAOME A RMNE
FABEMT :

i, LEMYEKEERGER R AN ER25% (=
T :25%) °

ii BIERGE CRM) BRARIMEHETR R B3%E
12% (ZZF——4% : 3%%E12%) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

EEME

8 Directors’ remuneration 8

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing BIEBIFR ETARREARRRGIZE 1611655

Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is WEEMESFFENT :
as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2013
fees in kind contributions Total
Fre 2R —E-=f
EEHe REMFz= BIRGHEMER &t
HKS$E T HKS$E 7T HKS$E 7T HK$3# 7T
Executive directors WTES
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent EED) vt 230,000 623,394 14,500 867,894
Mr. George Roger Manho BEHEEE 50,000 - - 50,000
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung BRI S A 230,000 394,180 14,500 638,680
Mr. Liu Hoi Wah AEERE 50,000 - - 50,000
560,000 1,017,574 29,000 1,606,574
Independent non-executive directors BV IFHITES
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen FEREL 120,000 - - 120,000
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony e b 50,000 - - 50,000
Mr. Tang Siu, Henry (Note a) BALLE (Ffrta) 17,800 - - 17,800
Mr. Wong Wang Fat, Andrew (Note b)  &7Z=Z %4 (Fistb) 25,000 - - 25,000
212,800 - - 212,800
Total EET 772,800 1,017,574 29,000 1,819,374
Notes: FaE
a) Resigned on 8 August 2012 a) R_F——F\AN\BBE
b) Newly appointed on 1 October 2012 b) RZB——F+A—BEZE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BE_ZT-—=F=ZA=+—HLFE CVETIIE)

Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8 E=EME (&)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement

Directors'’ and benefits scheme 2012

fees in kind contributions Total
e =R T

e REDHz= RINGTEIRR &t
HK$A T HK$ 7T HK$7& 7T HK$H T

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent FEREE 230,000 514,116 12,000 756,116
Mr. George Roger Manho BEMgELE 50,000 - - 50,000
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung WE S 230,000 385,950 12,000 627,950
Mr. Liu Hoi Wah 2L AE 50,000 - - 50,000
560,000 900,066 24,000 1,484,066
Independent non-executive directors BV IEHITES

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen ZERELT 146,333 - - 146,333
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony ey P 50,000 - - 50,000
Mr. Tang Siu, Henry A8 50,000 - - 50,000
246,333 - - 246,333
Total AEr 806,333 900,066 24,000 1,730,399
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

9 Individuals with highest emoluments 9

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2012:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2012:

three) individuals are as follows:

REHAL
RERSEHFALS Wl (ZF—=% : WD)

REF  RENHSDHNMES  EB=u (=%
——F ZfI) S HFATHMESERENT

2013 =ZF—=% 2012 —=—— 4

HKS$# T HKS$H& T
Salaries and other emoluments e REAMmIE 1,519,474 1,374,024
Retirement scheme contributions RIARGTEIHER 43,500 36,000
1,562,974 1,410,024

The emoluments of the three (2012: three) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following band:

= (ZF——F: =fI) &FaF A LN F
ToIEE -

2013 =2—=% 2012 ==& ——%

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 =7 — 1,000,000/ 7T

Number of Number of
individuals individuals
ATEE ATHE
3 3

10 Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the 10
company

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the company
includes a profit of HK$498,866 (2012: a loss of HK$6,193,754)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

company.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

11 Other comprehensive expense 11 HMZ2EXH
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive BEEME2EZHOBBELZEMT
expense:
2013 —2—=F 2012 —F——&F
Before tax Tax Net-of-tax Before tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount

BREASE BEIHE REEEE BEgeE BEIE BRERGLE
HK$7E T HK$7E T HKS$E T HK$& 7T HK$S 7T HK$ 7T

Exchange differences on TBINETEEY
translating foreign HEETE
operations 8,476 - 8,476 106,248 - 106,248
12 Earnings/(loss) per share 12 BREAN (FE)
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on BREARBN, (EBB) DIRAQBERS ARMNEE
the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the company of A, (E518) 1,061,660 L (ZTE—ZF: 18
HK$1,061,660 (2012: loss of HK$1,841,113) and the weighted 1,841,113% L) RFEAE ZF/T MR METH
average of 930,952,000 (2012: 933,796,863) ordinary shares in A% £2930,952,000/% (= & — — £ : 933,796,863
issue during the year, calculated as follows: i) - FHEMT
2013 =2—=% 2012 =2 —=F
HKS$E T HK$E T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April A —BHE BT R 930,952,000 935,728,000
Effect of repurchase of shares B HEIFZE (KH1FE27() (i)
(note 27 (a)(ii)) - (1,931,137)
Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=+T—RHELER
shares at 31 March T2 930,952,000 933,796,863
As the company does not have any potential dilutive ordinary HE_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFEWEEEIH
shares during the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil), basic SHLBER (22— = 8) WEARBESETN
and diluted earnings/(loss) per share are the same. (E518) #ME
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 Segment reporting

HE-Z—=F=A=1—HILFE CVETIIE)

13 ZEW|E

The group’s operating and reportable segments are (i) smartcard

systems, RFID and IT services; and (ii) consultancy services.

Information regarding these segments is reported below.

AEENRERERD AT ROEERESL - 5
SRR R B A AR B AR DA R (i) BRI AR 7% » B REE Lk

PWERSHIMT -

Smartcard systems,
RFID and IT services Consultancy services Consolidated
BRFAR - HERE
RERNE RS R &8
013=F-=F 2012 -F——F WB=F-=F 2012 -F——F WB=F-=F 2012 -F——F
HK$7& T HK$/B T HKS$/B T HK$BTT HK$/B T HK$BTT
TURNOVER L
Revenue from external customers  45h & Flizs 21,914,282 21,578,570 6,450,295 4,324,891 28,364,577 25,903,461
RESULTS £
Segment profit DEbE M 3,336,042 409,636 192,007 100,978 3,528,049 510,614
Unallocated corporate revenue AT AR £l 155,521 15,930
Unallocated corporate expenses R FHEMESH (2,590,199) (2,276,388)
Profit/(loss) from operations BEER /(BR) 1,093,371 (1,749,844)
Finance costs BERA (31,711) (83,019)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEAER /(B18) 1,061,660 (1,832,863)
Income tax it - (8,250)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRaFl/(B8) 1,061,660 (1,841,113)
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PHEE 6,999,835 7472713 726,677 434,395 7,726,512 7,907,108
Unallocated assets AFPHREE 8,617,327 5,468,917
Total assets wEE 16,343,839 13,376,025
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities PHEE 5,193,015 3,365,358 672,215 459,009 5,865,230 3,824,367
Unallocated liabilities AFOREE 364,772 491,005
Total liabilities BaR 6,230,002 4,315,372
OTHER INFORMATION HinEs
Capital expenditure ERER 439,170 13,228 115 - 439,285 13228
Depreciation e 106,605 53,953 643 2,226 107,248 56,179
Provisions e 692,629 803,600 61,453 54,547 754,082 858,147
Reversal of unused provisions REF A R (685,412) (445,023) (105,863) (52,772) (791,275) (497,795)
Write-off of inventories FERE 71,718 163,868 - - 71,718 163,868
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

Segment reporting (continued) 13 ZE®mE (F&)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and RTEEDB2HENRRLERNDA :
allocating resources between segments:
= Segment profit represented profit earned by each segment = FT 2585 8m M TERE D B E AR 1T
without allocation of certain central administration costs, A « EABUA « BEKAS « R ZFIA
other income, finance costs, exchange difference and RSB T 255 @85 308 BT R B
income tax expense. A e
- All assets are allocated to reportable segments other = BRIEAT R RATEBCAS ~ FIREIATISEE - B4
than prepaid central administration costs, income tax RRITEFARR S RBLEEWIN - FiE
recoverable, pledged bank deposits and cash and bank BEANETEZINHEL -
balances.
- All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other - BRIERT AR RITBURK AR R ER FRETSN - PR A
than accrued central administration costs and income tax BEHDETE2MAE -
payable.
Geographical information (a) HbIFER
The group’s operations are principally located in Hong Kong, REBEEERE  RPIUARPBILEHT o
Macao and the PRC.
The group’s revenue from external customers and information REENEINE P e RIEREE EM NS Z
about its non-current assets by geographical location of the assets T &
are detailed below:
Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
HohEF s FEREEE
2013 =F—=F 2012 =FT—=F 2013=F—=F 2012=_FT—=F
HK$#E T HK$# T HK$#E T HK$# 7T
Hong Kong BB 25,375,462 21,007,626 372,725 38,403
Macao JEFY 2,989,115 4,873,215 1,275 2,246
PRC A= - - 664 2,059
Other locations Hthih 5 - 22,620 - -
28,364,577 25,903,461 374,664 42,708
Information about major customers (b) EBFEEFEH

For the year ended 31 March 2013, there was two (2012: one)
customers who accounted for over 10% of total revenue of the
group with revenue of HK$7,881,109 (2012: HK$6,954,854)
related to the smartcard systems, RFID and IT services segment and
consultancy services segment (2012: smartcard systems, RFID and
IT services segment).

HE-T—=F-A=1+—HLEFE M (=%
— =& 1) TR - §ERRI R EMEH
RIERERRE (—T— —F : D&% 5748
HRIREABERE) 2EHEFPWEGEAEEN L
WZ5BiB10% F ZSEEEEF MU 57,881,109
BT (ZZT— 4 : 6,954,854/ 7T) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 F3&

69



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

. =5
14 Fixed assets 14 EBEEE
The group REE
Computer
Leasehold Furniture and other
improvements and fixtures equipment Total
HENEEE GRREE ERREAMRE a5t
HKS$ETT HK$A 7T HK$ATT HKS$&TT
Cost: A
At 1 April 2011 R-ZZ——%FmA—H 539,133 393,558 2,780,939 3,713,630
Additions NE - - 13,228 13,228
Disposals HE = - (347,000) (347,000)
Exchange adjustments P& 5 g EE - 1,261 5,222 6,483
At 31 March 2012 and NZE——%=HF=+—H
1 April 2012 k=ZZE——FWA—H 539,133 394,819 2,452,389 3,386,341
Additions INE 416,800 = 22,485 439,285
Disposals HE (539,133) (23,189) (1,297,196) (1,859,518)
Exchange adjustments P& 5 K - 252 1,044 1,296
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=%4=RA=+—H 416,800 371,882 1,178,722 1,967,404
Accumulated depreciation: RIHE
At 1 April 2011 RZZ—FNMA—H 539,133 388,392 2,700,665 3,628,190
Charge for the year FRNITE - 3,282 52,897 56,179
Eliminated on disposals HERTH - - (347,000) (347,000)
Exchange adjustments b 5 AR - 1,192 5,072 6,264
At 31 March 2012 and NZE——F=A=+—H
1 April 2012 k=ZF——FmMA—H 539,133 392,866 2,411,634 3,343,633

Charge for the year FANE 79,812 1,450 25,986 107,248
Eliminated on disposals 6 B 2 8 (539,133) (23,189) (1,297,196) (1,859,518)
Exchange adjustments P& 5 g2 - 249 1,128 1,377
At 31 March 2013 R-EB—=F=A=+—H 79,812 371,376 1,141,552 1,592,740
Carrying amount: IREE :
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=F=A=+—H 336,988 506 37,170 374,664
At 31 March 2012 RZEB——F=A=+—H - 1,953 40,755 42,708

ITE (Holdings) Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AR e B s HRaR M e

BE_ZT-—=F=ZA=+—HLFE CVETIIE)

15 Goodwill 15 BE
The group
rEE
HK$#E 7T
Cost RS
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012, R-ZE——FmWA—H  —TE——F=A=1+—H
1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 —E——FPNA—BRER-_ZE—=F=A=+—H 9,507,923
Accumulated amortisation REEH
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012, R-TE——FNHA—B - —E——F=H=+—H
1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 —E——_FA—HERE—=F=A=+—H 3,169,307
Accumulated impairment loss ZBREEE
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012, R-_TE——FNMA—H - —_E——F=H=+—H -
1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 T —HFNNA—HAKR_E—=F=A=+—H 6,338,616

Carrying amount

At 31 March 2013

RZE—=F=H=+—H

At 31 March 2012

RZZE——F=A=+—H

16 Investments in subsidiaries

16 MEAFRE

The company

RATE]
2013 =2—=F 2012 == ——F
HK$#E T HKS$#TT
Unlisted investments, at cost IEEMIRE (REKA) 4,000,000 4,000,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries JELS P B 1 B R 5K 27,868,030 28,390,673
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE (27,868,030) (28,390,673)
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free BB ARIKRRE AEIKT  REREREX
and repayable on demand. B -

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

NTREEBFEBARNRESE BEXBBENHEAR
BIFE - BREERSN - BRI S EER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

BiEze ORF) BRAE

25,0002 9%

16 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 16 MEBARRE (&)
Place of Percentage of Particulars of
incorporation/ ownership issued and Principal
Name of company establishment interest paid up capital activities
i Pk s BETR
DR ER FR L1t 26 HEZL BRREANFE TEXK
Indirect
=3
2013 2012
“E-=f ZT—=f
ITE Smartcard Hong Kong 100% 100% 3,418,336 shares of Provision of smartcard systems
Solutions Limited B HK$1 each and related services and sales
BERZGERAT 3,418,336% of service related products
(GREEIT) REE R R T RIEARS &
HE RSB E R
RF Tech Limited Hong Kong 100% 100% 2 shares of Manufacture and research of
BB HK$1 each smartcard system and service
28R (BiREE1T) related products
HERAR SR RRGERER
ITE (China) Limited (Note) PRC 100% 100% United States dollars Provision of smartcard systems
EBREEERSR il ("US$") 700,000 and related services
ARRATE (M) 700,000 7T REE R R LAEARTS
Quesco Systems Limited Hong Kong 100% 100% 6,500,000 shares of Provision of IT consultancy
REZSERERAF 5 HK$1 each services
6,500,000/% REE AR B RTS
(BREMEIT)
ITE Sistema (Macau) Macao 100% 100% Macao Patacas Provision of smartcard systems
Limitada il ("MOP") 25,000 and related services and sales

of service related products
REE R RS KBRS &
HERSIEAER

Note:

operating period of 20 years expiring on 26 June 2021.

ITE (China) Limited is a wholly foreign owned enterprise with an

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the group which, in the

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year

or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the group.

To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

P& -

LEMYEKEERZRERAFAB-—RENEDR

¥ KESHA—t+F R-_TE-_—FXA=1R~

BEm °

ERIFEZRREIBHEAKEAFRERARR
AEEFEETZAXRBONMBAR - EFRR
Wk A EARNFHEREEBRRANILE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

Inventories 17 #FE
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position RERE MBI RN IFE B
comprise:
The group
REH
2013 =Z2—=F§ 2012 —&——F
HKS$#8 T HKS$A 7T
Raw materials FEME 569,786 400,637
Work in progress paat Uatr 392,863 755,968
Finished goods UK 264,960 372,375
1,227,609 1,528,980
0 =h
Trade and other receivables 18 EWE S R HE M EWKIRMK
The group The company
rEH RAF
2013 =Z—=HF 2012 —ZE——%F 2013=B—=F 2012 —F——4
HKS#E T HK$ 7T HKSB T HK$ 7T
Trade receivables B SR 3,795,879 1,825,352 - -
Other receivables H b FEYRIR TR 487,967 678,385 - -
Gross amount due from R P HRS
customers for service AR TIEFIE
contract work (note 19) g (fsE19) 806,181 2,413,385 - =
Retention money receivables FEWIRZ & 442,172 454,849 - -
Deposits and prepayments HE G 34 760,800 1,151,364 168,760 187,915
6,292,999 6,523,335 168,760 187,915
All of the trade and other receivables, apart from certain rental BRELEETS KEWRE S HE410,137%8 7T (=
deposits and retention money receivables of HK$410,137 (2012: T —T4F : 45,3538 7) I NEENFEERKES
HK$45,353), of the group are expected to be recovered or R E A FEHIR KRFEER N —F AR B s R A ER -

recognised as expense within one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ire SRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a)

(b)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the

HE-Z—=F=A=1—HILFE CVETIIE)

18 EBWEZRHEAMEBWIRR (F)

(a)

R 5 HI R FE W B 5 iR SR AV IR 2 20 4 40

end of the reporting period is as follows: TS«
The group
rEE
2013 =ZF—=% 2012 =& ——=%
HKS$#E T HK$E 7T
Current N 1,606,414 146,441
Less than 1 month past due wHID R —E A 1,546,742 1,235,287
1 month to 3 months past due M —EA=={EH 328,202 204,585
More than 3 months but less than mAfEB=EA R DR —F

1 year past due 314,521 239,039
Amounts past due B EE 2,189,465 1,678,911
3,795,879 1,825,352

Trade receivables are due within 45 days (2012: 45 days) from the
date of billing. Further details on the group’s credit policy are set
out in note 28(a).

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired are set out in note 18(a).

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are considered fully recoverable. The
group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

(b)

EREZIRRBAEZERBBISK(ZTE—ZF:45
X) REE - FBEHRM F28@AEENEEIK

o

ﬂio

RBRAE R B E 5 iRk 5K

KT EE18(a) FE UL E B IR ARV IR e D AT IR B #F 40 =%
2 HfE EIR(E °

FEWIRFOL B BB RBER KO FFRARARL

EBEKIETERERENBUTFEARESR
RiFsek - RBBERLR  EEERGUHEEHRY
EEERBERNBCRRRERIER 22U E AT
BEELRELEE - NREERERB UL SEBREM
MR -



For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

19 Service contracts in progress

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B s HRaR M e

BE_ZT-—=F=ZA=+—HLFE CVETIIE)

19 ETHFHNERBESH

Contract costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses to date

Less: Progress billings

ESDEERANINER NI

AR B
B EE RS

Gross amount due from customers for
service contract work (note 18)

Gross amount due to customers for
service contract work (note 22)

RN =P HRIEA L TR
FIEseE (fE18)

B R P RREE IR
IR (MizE22)

The group
REE
2013 —E—=% 2012 —F——%F
HK$#% T HK$#E 7T

3,005,034 4,156,166
(2,575,224) (1,871,511)
429,810 2,284,655
806,181 2,413,385
(376,371) (128,730)
429,810 2,284,655

20 Financial assets at fair value through profit 20

or loss
The group
rEE
2013 —Z—=% 2012 —F—=%
HK$#E T HKS$HTT

Listed securities — held-for-trading LTS - HEEE

— Equity securities in Hong Kong — BN ERES 751,260 768,380

Market value of listed securities ETESNTISER 751,260 768,380

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current bid

prices in an active market.

B #EmES N R FEGERE BT 5 RE
HRELK -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Cash and cash equivalents

The group

HE-Z—=F=A=1—HILFE CVETIIE)

RERATEEY

The company
VAN

2013 =Z—=HF 2012 _ZE——%F 2013=Z—=F 2012 —F——%
HKS#& T HK$A T HKSB T HK$& T
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTAER 3,595,382 1,808,456 456,855 67,667
Time deposits T HifF R 4,101,925 2,704,166 - -
7,697,307 4,512,622 456,855 67,667
Less: Pledged bank deposits & @ E IR TFER (2,212,053) (2,206,643) - -
Cash and bank balances RAERBARRERA
in the consolidated B MIRTTHES
statement of financial
position 5,485,254 2,305,979 456,855 67,667
Less: Time deposits with B BB=EAN
terms over three months BHTEHER (629,300) -
Cash and cash equivalents ~ GZAEETRERD
in the consolidated BeRREEEY
cash flow statement 4,855,954 2,305,979

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates except for time deposits which earns interest at
fixed rate. Time deposits are made for terms of three to twelve
months (2012: three months), depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the group.

Included in time deposits and cash and bank balances of the
group is a total amount of HK$1,915,954 (2012: HK$588,205)
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) as at 31 March 2013.
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

Pledged bank deposits were pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities granted to the group.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

PR & HR1F AR BR & & ) R R A 240 - $R1T1F KA
B ARF EARES B RITE BT RFRMES o
EHERASB=2+_EA(ZT—=F: =4
A RIEREEHREFTKRNZSREME °

RZZ—=F=A=1+—8 THEAEBEEKRE
1TH B BIE1,915,954B TREAARKESIE (=T
— % : 588,205/87T) ° IS AR H M A b E K
JBARIR R B SNE B IR AR R A TE - B R EE R
LT ©

AEBUABERRITERERR - BRIEE K
MIRTTRELE ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

22 Trade and other payables 22 ENEFZRHEMEMIRRK
The group The company
FEE VNG
2013 =F—=F 2012-FT——F 2013=FT-=F 2012-_FT——-F
HK$3#& 7T HK$ETT HK$# 7T HK$B 7T
Trade payables ERTE SRR 496,115 426,820 - =
Accrued charges and FEEt B R EoAh
other payables FERTHRTR 2,757,777 2,038,663 345,062 473,895
Gross amount due to eI P B9 AR TS
customers for service SR TRHRIE
contract work (note 19) #za (fizE19) 376,371 128,730 - -
Deferred maintenance EIERE WA
income 1,948,176 1,035,005 - =
5,578,439 3,629,218 345,062 473,895
All of the trade and other payables of the group are expected REERENE S REMEMIRRBRER —FA
to be settled or recognised as income within one year or are X EEREE KR BRA ©

repayable on demand.

The ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the RMEHR - REZEHAEENE S RIEIRER
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: DITEAT
The group
rEE
2013 =F—=% 2012 =T ——%
HKS$#E T HK$ETT

Less than 1 month DR —1E A 315,679 229,639
1 month to 3 months —Z=={@A 94,728 83,779
More than 3 months but less than 1 year — #838 =1 /B A —E - -
More than 1 year il —F 85,708 113,402
496,115 426,820
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 Provisions

23 B

HE-Z—=F=A=1—HILFE CVETIIE)

The group &M

Employee Defect liability
benefits period
(note (a)) (note(b)) Total
EERF REH
(FMtzx(a)) (Ff=E(b)) &5t
HK$# 7T HK$# 7T HK$#E 7T
At 1 April 2011 R-ZE——FmA—H 89,128 219,565 308,693
Additional provisions recognised FEIMEREEHR (FiiFE6(0)
(note 6(c)) 87,283 770,864 858,147
Reversal of unused provisions RENAEEEE (FizEe()
(note 6(c)) (100,688) (397,107) (497,795)
At 31 March 2012 and RZZE——F=A=+—~H
1 April 2012 E—ZF——FH—H 75,723 593,322 669,045
Additional provisions recognised FIMERE R (FiiFE6(0)
(note 6(c)) 109,478 644,604 754,082
Reversal of unused provisions RE)H BRI (FI5E6(0)
(note 6(c)) (139,834) (651,441) (791,275)
At 31 March 2013 R=T—=%F=H=+—~H 45,367 586,485 631,852
Notes: B3
(a) The provision for employee benefits represents annual leave accrued (a) EEBABEIEREE FHRRIRERFHRREME -
and compensation claims made by employees.
(b) The provision for the defect liability period relates to the estimated (b) REBREEDEEEE TEFP SR REAGNMEE

cost of work agreed to be carried out for the rectification of smartcard

systems to certain customers. The amount has not been discounted

for the purpose of measuring the provision for defect liability period

because the effect would not be material.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

TRAAR - ARNREBREHENRRZED

R HURBRHEBEREE -
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(a)

(b)

(9)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Income tax in the consolidated statement 24

of financial position

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

(a)

AR e B s HRaR M e

BE_ZT-—=F=ZA=+—HLFE CVETIIE)

mE BRI R TR

A RBIRRRNTEHRIA

The group
rEH
2013 =2 —=% 2012 —&F——%
HKS$#E T HKS$Z 7T
Provision for Hong Kong profits tax FRABBNETEME

for the year - 8,250
Provisional profits tax paid BB ERISH (7,556) (12,047)
(7.556) (3,797)

Balance of profits tax provision relating BAFENGHEEES
to prior years 27,267 20,906
Income tax payable FER RS 19,711 17,109

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 31 March 2013, the group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of approximately
HK$43,457,000 (2012: HK$45,119,000) and deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$413,000 (2012: HK$774,000)
due to the uncertainty of the related tax benefits being
realised through future taxable profits. The unused tax losses
of approximately HK$3,854,000 (2012: HK$4,971,000) can be
carried forward for offset against the taxable profits of subsequent
years for five years following the loss year. Other unused tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred tax liabilities

At 31 March 2013, there were no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liabilities (2012: HK$Nil).

(b)

(c)

RERIELERIREE

RZE—=F=A=1+—H HRBENERHS
MEBOBETENZETEE - AEEEFFE
B 1B T AR T R R BB 18 & EE 4) /343,457,000
JE (ZZ—4% : 45,119,000/ 7)) @ MARRNE
W Z R4 /413,000 7T (ZF — =4 : 774,000
JL) ° RHERE 1B #)3,854,0008 L (Z T —=4F :
4,971,000 7z ) AT A DA i B2 2 22 5K 2R 1 4F O B AR
Bim A - i H th &5 18 B ALk A EH o

EEHIBRE

RZZE—=F=RA=+—H WREBEEMERKHE
RELEHRREE (ZF——F : T)ET) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25

26

B RR M =

Employee retirement benefits

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 effective from 1 June
2012. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The subsidiary operating in the PRC is required to participate in
a defined contribution retirement scheme, organised by relevant
government authorities for the staff in the PRC. The subsidiary
is required to make contributions to the retirement scheme at
specified rates of the basic salary of its employees in the PRC.

The group’s retirement scheme contributions charged to profit or
loss for the year were HK$641,035 (2012: HK$596,170).

Share options schemes

The company previously adopted a 2002 share option scheme
(the “2002 Scheme”) on 8 August 2002. The company later
adopted another 2011 share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”)
on 8 August 2011,
terminated.

and the 2002 Scheme was simultaneously

Upon termination of the 2002 Scheme, no further options may
be offered thereunder. However, in respect of the outstanding
options, the provisions of the 2002 Scheme will remain in force.
The outstanding options granted under the 2002 Scheme continue
to be subject to the provisions of the 2002 Scheme and Chapter
23 of the GEM Listing Rules, and the adoption of the 2011
Scheme will not in any event affect the terms in respect of such
outstanding options.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

25

26

HE-Z—=F=A=1—HILFE CVETIIE)

B TRAKEF

AEBEZREERGIEAESABGHIRRETEE
(FACSYIE /ﬂiéfw%liaﬁﬁ/xﬁﬁm%mﬂLW”ril W&
BREERHRFIEATRSFE (RESFTE]) < &
seiE st Bl A MRE TALWDJrglJ W ERBIIEFEE
TEHE - RigwETAE  BEXIMEEEVEARE
EAMNHEN%RRESFIRR MEBEAS
BrF £ ER /325,000 =T~ —FNA—
B4R - A HEFGREE T -

ARRNFENEAREE MR REZRER
EHE B 2 TR R NG 8] o M B A FRRH
BA BRI R REN L RIAMEEEARTE(EH A
JEH 3R

o

RNEBMPAAFE T AR SRR IREF T BIER A
641,035 70 (ZZ— =% : 596,170 C) °

fERfERTE

REZZEZ-FA\ANR ARFARH-_ZZ_FE
Pt (2 F548) - ZR=F——FN
HANB - ARBRRA-FT——FlkiEts (=
—— 58] TR _FHEIRRAL

FoTE_FFEIRIER - TEEREIL SR

R EAAE « R ARTTEMNBRE  — T 47 Jr
EIRBELEN - — T FHEMARITROBRE
fEHtEE T — T _F B MBI LR RIS
T=% —2——FHEEEME /RT%T\’E\.%E
UG 555 i AT T 18 U SRR PO (A fRTHER K
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Share options schemes (continued)
2002 Scheme

The company operates the 2002 Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
Eligible
participants of the 2002 Scheme include the company’s directors,

contribute to the success of the group’s operations.

including independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the group, suppliers of goods or services to the group, customers
of the group, advisers and consultants, etc. The 2002 Scheme
became effective on 8 August 2002.

The company adopted the 2011 Scheme on 8 August 2011,
and the 2002 Scheme was simultaneously terminated. Upon
termination of the 2002 Scheme, no further options may be
offered thereunder. However, in respect of the outstanding
options, the provisions of the 2002 Scheme will remain in force.
The outstanding options granted under the 2002 Scheme continue
to be subject to the provisions of the 2002 Scheme and Chapter
23 of the GEM Listing Rules, and the adoption of the 2011
Scheme will not in any event affect the terms in respect of such
outstanding options.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2002 Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the company shall not exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the company in issue. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the 2002
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the company
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a

general meeting.

26

(a)

AR e B s HRaR M e

BE_T-—=F=H=1—RLLFE CAVBTIIE)

BREsTE ()
—REF5E

AARBITZET_F58 EERBAEEEE
&mﬁ%a%ﬂﬂéﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ@&ﬁﬁo:gg
ZEHEEEREREARNES AHBEBVHE
ﬁﬁ§$\$ﬁlﬁwga~ﬁm&%% tRER
BF - ERE - —ET _FHER_ZZT_FNA
J\BRBAERK -

RZZT——FNANAB  ARARRM =T ——F5f
ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ_YY: iTE o BT _F5E

1ET& - NG ERR LT 2R 2 (T ARKE o MR
%ﬂﬁ%%k% T FHEEREEER - =
TE_FHEMATENEREEEBEET _ZF
ZHFHERBIER EMRAUE—FT=F - —T——
FEEEMBER THTERE N F M ARITEER
B TN o

SLITEE P 1 AR 17 68 89 B 4% 1 B8 AR o B i 7 {2
MARRE ZFT —F5 8 R E b BT S B
o EBTHRMHEE TEBBARKRMHETERK
B930%  PMER+— AR MR - KRR —TE_F
AR EMEGBEETSSEMABRENED
MM E R - E&R LRARAERE HITRMH
1% (A8 H b EREBEERH - ARBRRA
R ARALE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 3§

81



82

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4=

ire SRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26

(a)

Share option schemes (continued)
2002 Scheme (continued)

Share options granted to directors, chief executives or substantial
shareholders of the company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the
share options or the expiry date of the 2002 Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share option is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the company’s shares on the date of the offer of the share
options, (i) the average closing price of the company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the share.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

Share option schemes (continued) 26 MEiRAESE (&)
2002 Scheme (continued) (a) Z=ZZZE-F58 (&)
As mentioned above, the 2002 Scheme was terminated on 8 NEREK  —ZEZ &38R =2 ——F/\AN\AR
August 2011 and no further options may be offered thereunder. RIE - TSR BEITERE - RERRKRIT
Details of the outstanding share options of the Scheme during the EH BB AR FE TN T -
year are as follows:
Number of share options
BREHE
Price per
Outstanding sharetobe  Market value
at 1 April 2011, Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding Period during which paidon  pershare at
Name or category of 31 March 2012 during during during at Date options  exercise of  date of grant
participant and 1 April 2012 the year the year the year 31 March 2013 granted exercisable options of options
RZEB--F
mA-B-
—E-CE
=A=1-H
R=%-=F RZE-Z% RERE  RLEBRE
mA-H ZA=t-H AXfIN EBH
RERERALER HATE  REREE  RERTRE  RERAN WA RiAH EREGRY SRER RiiiE
Employees 3,500,000 - - (3,500,000) - 9 August 2002 9 August 2003 to HK$0.175 HK$0.175
8 August 2012
] === ZERCENAABE  0SET 0175ET
NARE “2—EN\ANR
An employee 6,400,000 - - (6,400,000) - 9 August 2002 9 February 2003 to HK$0.175 HK$0.175
8 August 2012
E8 e St “EEZFCANEE 0I5B 017537
NANA “E-—£\A)\R
9,900,000 - - (9,900,000) -
2011 Scheme (b) =ZF——%F5tE

The company operates the 2011 Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the 2011 Scheme include the company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the group, suppliers of goods or services to the group, customers
of the group, advisers and consultants, etc. The 2011 Scheme
became effective on 8 August 2011 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

ARAET_F——F5td EERNHAKEEF
RO EMBERIEAERERHEEHLRE - —T—
—FHEAERERBEARNES  HPEEBEIFE
WITESZ AKEHEMBES  EmlRBHER
TP EEE  — T —FFER_F——F/\A
NERER - BEBUHRERS - AR E AL
SATERBR -
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26

(b)

Share options schemes (continued)
2011 Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2011 Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the company shall not exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the company in issue. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the 2011
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the company
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to directors, chief executives or substantial
shareholders of the company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the

share options or the expiry date of the 2011 Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share option is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the company’s shares on the date of the offer of the share
options, (i) the average closing price of the company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the share.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

26 Share options schemes (continued)

(b) 2011 Scheme (continued)

Up to 31 March 2013, no share options were granted, exercised

or lapsed.

At 31 March 2013, the number of share options outstanding and

exercisable under the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme were none.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote

at shareholders’ meetings.

26 BRETE (F)
(b) =ZF——%F5r8 (&)

BHE_T—=F=A=+—BILFEAR  WLEE
BB ARAE TR Y ~ TR AR

R-_T—=F=A=+—H ' —ZEZT_F:HEKR_T——
FE B BITHRNEE DRI AT -

BN B TRA AR E MR IR A G R EEER) o

27 Capital and reserves 27 EBEXRRHE
(@) Share capital (@) m’=&
(i) The company (i) VNN
2013 =8—=% 2012 =F—=F
Number of shares HK$ Number of shares HK$
IRPEE B R E I
Authorised: TR
Ordinary shares of FRE(E0.01 7T
HK$0.01 each TR 2,000,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
Ordinary share, issued BRITRARRA
and fully paid: Tk
At 1 April REYA—H 930,592,000 9,305,920 935,728,000 9,357,280
Repurchase of shares Bl )
(note 27(a)(ii)) (B¥zE27(a)ii) - - (5,136,000) (51,360)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 930,592,000 9,305,920 930,592,000 9,305,920

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as

declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share

at meetings of the company. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the company’s residual assets.

EREFEAARIRERMAE KOS - A%
RASE SR LRER—FRKERR - EEER
EASERBEETHARS M -
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HE-Z—=F=A=1—HILFE CVETIIE)

27 Capital and reserves (continued) 27 BEXRREE (8)
(@) Share capital (continued) (a) MBA& ()
(i) Repurchase of shares (i) B B A 15
During the year, the company did not repurchase its own ordinary R - AR T AR 5 B AR AR5 o
shares on the Stock Exchange.
In the year ended 31 March 2012, the company repurchased its Mo —&F#=A=+—HIFHEE  KXAFARKT
own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: 5 B [ 8% T 51| 2@ AR AR 5
2012 —F——%
Number of Price paid per share
shares Aggregate GRS HEE
Month/year & /B repurchased prices paid Highest Lowest
e 2 4= > fSHHaRR &= i
HK$7E 7T HK$7&7T HK$7&7T
August 2011 —E—F)\H 1,444,000 114,426 0.080 0.076
November 2011 —T——%1t—A 1,788,000 134,490 0.072 0.062
December 2011 —ET—F+=A4 892,000 63,570 0.075 0.065
January 2012 —E2——F—H 204,000 13,451 0.065 0.064
February 2012 —ZT——F=A 808,000 49,133 0.060 0.060
5,136,000 375,070

4,328,000 shares repurchased during August 2011 to January

2012 were subsequently cancelled in January 2012, while 808,000

shares repurchased in February 2012 were subsequently cancelled

in October 2012. The issued share capital of the company was

reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The premium paid

on the repurchase of the shares of HK$Nil in current year (2012:

HK$323,710) was charged to share premium account.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

4,328,000 EERHE DR == ——FNAH
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

Capital and reserves (continued)
Share capital (continued) (a)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of  (iii)

the reporting period

27 EXRkfHE (F)

R (48)

2013 —E—=%

R & HR A R B N R TT R R A e

2012 —&2——4F

Exercise Price Number Number
Exercise period 1T 1TfEE #H #H
9 August 2003 to —EE=FN\ANBEE
8 August 2012 —ET——FN\ANH HK$0.175 - 3,500,000
9 February 2003 to —EE=F_ANHZE
8 August 2012 —ZT——FN\ANH HK$0.175 - 6,400,000
- 9,900,000
Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share BRESEAFHEAT - RBERERE —REAR
in the company. Further details of these options are set out in note A AR o A B AR RIS N AN B RS AR & M A
26(a) to the consolidated financial statements. 26(a) °
Reserves (b) f#&
The group (i) KEE
The amounts of the group’s reserves and the movements therein REBENRFEREESINGaRREDE
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The company (if) NN
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
gy 2358 &5t
HK$#E 7T HK$#E 7T HK$# 7T
Balance at 1 April 2011 R-ZE——EMmMA—B&H# 25,322,792 (24,329,561) 993,231
Repurchase of shares (note 27(a)(ii)) EIEEMD (FizE27(a)i)) (323,710) - (323,710)
Loss for the year FRNEE = (6,193,754) (6,193,754)
Balance at 31 March 2012 and R-TE——F=A=+—H
1 April 2012 k—Z——FNA—B#% 24,999,082 (30,523,315) (5,524,233)
Profit for the year A - 498,866 498,866
Balance at 31 March 2013 R-Z—=4F
ZH=+—B#&&H 24,999,082 (30,024,449) (5,025,367)
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27

(o)

()

(ii)

(iii)

(d)

Capital and reserves (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves
Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
company’s articles of association and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, which provides that the share premium account
may be applied in making distributions or paying dividends to
members, provided that immediately following the date on which
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the company will
be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

Merger reserve

The group’s merger reserve represents the excess of the aggregate
of the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation completed on 18
November 2000 on the nominal value of the share capital of the

company issued in exchange therefor.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(p).

Distributability of reserves

At both 31 March 2013 and 2012, none of the reserves of the
company is available for distribution to owners of the company.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

Capital and reserves (continued)
Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safequard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for owners and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to

finance at a reasonable cost.

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher owner returns
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

The group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the group defines net
debt as total debt (which includes short-term borrowings and
trade and other payables) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less
cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

During the year, the group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2012, was to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio below
50%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to owners, issue new shares,
return capital to owners, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The major financial covenant for the group’s committed banking
facilities is to maintain the consolidated tangible net worth not less
than HK$10,000,000 during the period of facilities granted. At 31
March 2013, the group had complied with the relevant financial

covenant.

27 EXRkfHE (F)

(e)
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28

(a)

Financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the group’s business. The group is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from its financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

These risks are limited by the group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

Credit risk

The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 45 days (2012: 45 days)
from the date of billing. Normally, the group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of the
reporting period, the group has a certain concentration of credit
risk as 11% (2012: 17%) and 49% (2012: 62%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. Except for the financial
guarantees given by the company as set out in note 30, the group
does not provide any other guarantees which would expose the
group or the company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees at the end of
the reporting period is disclosed in note 30.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in
note 18.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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BE_ZT-—=F=ZA=+—HLFE CVETIIE)

Financial instruments (continued) 28 £®IT A (&)
Liquidity risk (b) E2RBMERMR
The group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash AEENBRIREEHNHERREEZEY - &
equivalents or have available funding through an adequate FBERRTREHOIECHRREHEE - WEEZHAT
amount of committed annual credit facilities from banks to meet FELEFENAZIL - ARAEFRR - 8K
its commitments over the next year in accordance with its strategic IR —FARRANESH I EDH - AEETRE
plan. In the opinion of the directors of the company, most of the HERHESRRAENEESRE  WHAEER
borrowings that mature within one year are able to be renewed BESAMR -
and the group expects to have adequate sources of funding to
finance the group and manage the liquidity position.
The maturity profile of the group’s financial liabilities as at the end RBERR  AEERNESHERBENRITRE
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted SMIRAT :
cash flows, was as follows:
The group rEH
2013 =2 —=F
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash outflow on demand
EHRRITH R—FR
IR E{E R REERER
HK$#& T HK$# T HK$# T
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 & B FE( IR FR 3,253,892 3,253,892 3,253,892
2012 Z=— =%
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash outflow on demand
ARIARITE R—FR
MREE e HEERER
HK$# T HK$# 7T HK$7& 7T
Trade and other payables FERT B 5 R H M TR ER 2,465,483 2,465,483 2,465,483
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(b)

(o)

(d)

HE-Z—=F=A=1—HILFE CVETIIE)

Financial instruments (continued) 28 @ TIA (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) (b) E&REBHERMEE (E)
The maturity profile of the company’s financial liabilities as R|MER  AARMEEHNERBENRTRER
at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BRI
undiscounted cash flows, was as follows:
The company RAT
2013 =8-=% 2012 =F—=F
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount  cash outflow on demand amount cash outflow  on demand
BRATER KRR BRRTH R—FRX
IREE RER REEREE IREE Rent  SEERER
HK$7#% 7T HKS$3% T HKS$7E 7T HK$ T HK$H T HK$ETT
Accrued charges and FEEtER R
other payables H AR IRR 345,062 345,062 345,062 473,895 473,895 473,895
Interest rate risk (0 R=RER

The group’s significant interest-bearing assets are bank deposits.
The group’s interest income is dependent on changes in market
interest rates and will not have significant adverse impact on the
group’s financial position.

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates
would have no significant impact on the group’s profit and equity
for the year.

Currency risk

The group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in HK$, RMB, MOP and US$. The group
has minimal exposure to currency risk as the foreign exchange rate
of HK$ is close to MOP and HK$ is pegged with US$. The group
currently does not have a currency hedging policy in respect of
currency debt. The group will monitor its currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant currency exposure should the
need arise.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AR e B s HRaR M e

BE_ZT-—=F=ZA=+—HLFE CVETIIE)

Financial instruments (continued) 28 £®IT A (&)
Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥RR (E&)
The following table details the group’s exposure at the end of the REERBEHRAANIREAERNEREEZ
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets JIMEREERBBMEENEERBFADT
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
Assets Liabilities
EE =N
2013 =F—=F 2012 _FT——%F 2013=F—=F 2012 _FT——F
HK$#E T HK$E7T HK$#E 7T HK$AETT

RMB ARE 1,899,503 512,241 - -

MOP SRPIHS 34,602 34,602 - -

us$ ETT 13,821 55,824 269,178 -

A reasonably possible change of 1% in exchange rates between
RMB to HK$, MOP to HK$ and US$ to HK$ would have no
significant impact on the group’s profit/(loss) and equity for the
year.

Equity price risk

The group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value at end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the group is exposed to equity price risk. The directors manage this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with difference
risk profiles.

At 31 March 2013, if the market price of the listed equity
securities had increased/decreased by 10% with all other variables
held constant, the group’s profit (2012: loss) after tax would have
been HK$62,730 (2012: HK$64,160) higher/lower (2012: lower/
higher).

(e)

ARBEEBIT  BPIEB T RETEE T 2 ME
EH1% e BREHAERNF RN (EE) &
HHWREEATE -

B ER
AEENEBESREAFERENSBEEHN

WEMRARFEFE - WAKERE M EHRER
o mERERR  ESEEREFIRAETF
RERHEREERS -

R-ZT—=F=A=+—H0 " HEMBEELHA
TH10% @ MEMATZEXRRENE - NREEHRK
BaEEmnf (ZF— =4 [H18) #H5m md
—E——fF R HN) 62,7308 (ZE—=
F 1 64,160/87T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AN

ire SRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28 Financial instruments (continued) 28 @I A (&)
(f)  Categories of financial instruments () ERITANESR
2013 —&—=%F 2012 =ZF—=F
HKS$E T HK$Z 7T
The group A&
Financial assets SREE
Loan and receivables B & EURIR R
(including cash and bank balances) (BiERE RRITHEH) 12,975,037 8,294,724
Fair value through profit or loss FHiRB=IRIE A TE
(held for trading) (FEE=R) 751,260 768,380
Financial liabilities cEAas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HIEK AN SR B E 3,253,892 2,465,483
The company <A 7]
Financial assets SREE
Loan and receivables ER R EW IR
(including cash and bank balances) (BB E RRITHEER) 456,855 67,667
Financial liabilities TRIEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BERANSRARE 345,062 473,895
(g) Fair values (99 2F¥E
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially FESRIAMNARSBERAN T =6k

HE-Z—=F=A=1—HILFE CVETIIE)

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

——F=A=t+—HNLQFEEEATR -

The carrying value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at level 1 defined in HKFRS 7, using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial

instruments.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AR e B s HRaR M e

BE_ZT-—=F=ZA=+—HLFE CVETIIE)

Commitments 29 EiE
At 31 March 2013, the total future minimum lease payments RZZT—=F=ZA=+—0 A5EREEEYWE
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: WA E L LA EMER B FHRERER
IR :
The group
REE
2013 —Z—=% 2012 == —=F
HKS$#E T HK$#TT
Within 1 year —FR 1,059,506 640,256
After 1 year but within 5 years —FBAFNK 2,350,471 24,800
3,409,977 665,056
The group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties AEBES TREMENMERRETRES - H
and items of office equipment held under operating leases. The HE—MB—F2NF (ZZ——F: —F2=4F)
leases typical run for a period of 1 year to 4 years (2012: 1 year I AR B R A N ETRE - R FHANWRE
to 3 years) with an option to renew the lease when all terms are EAHAEE -
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
The group and the company did not have any other significant REBRARRANR_ZE—=F=A=+—HIEEE
capital and financial commitments as at 31 March 2013 (2012: AIERHERNRIABEAE (ZF——F : &) -
Nil).
Contingent liabilities 30 HAREME

At 31 March 2013, the company has issued corporate guarantees
to a bank in respect of banking facilities, such as revolving
demand loan facility and overdraft facility, granted to a wholly
owned subsidiary (2012: a wholly owned subsidiary). The directors
of the company do not consider it probable that a claim will be
made against the company under any of the guarantees. None of
these banking facilities were drawn down by the subsidiary as at
that date.

R-E—=F=A=+—H8  AQFA—FHE2EN
BAR (ZZ——F: —H2EMBRA) WiRTT
BE (PINBEREEREE) RECEER - K
RBAEEWTRAARRA A e E A BHER
BVER(E - BRI AR B EERTRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31

(a)

(b)

32

(a)

(b)

Material related party transactions
Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the group,
represents amounts paid to the company’s directors as disclosed in
note 8.

Provision of personal guarantees

Two (2012: two) directors of the company have provided personal
guarantees to the extent of approximately HK$4 million (2012:
HK$4 million) to the group in relation to general banking facilities
granted to the group.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The management had made the following estimates and
assumptions in the process of applying the group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 2, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities as discussed below.

Revenue and profit recognition

The group estimates the percentage of completion of the service
contracts by reference to the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date to the estimated total costs
for the contracts. When the final cost incurred by the group
is different from the amounts that were initially budgeted,
such differences will impact the revenue and the profit or loss
recognised in the period in which such determination is made.
Budgeted costs of each project will be reviewed periodically and
revised accordingly where significant variances are noted during

the revision.
Fixed assets and depreciation

The group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for the group’s fixed assets. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
fixed assets of a similar nature and function.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

31

(a)

(b)

32

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Impairment on trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment on trade and other receivables of the
group is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional impairment adjustments may be required.

Write-down of inventories

A write-down of inventories is made based on the ageing and
estimated net realisable value of inventories. The assessment of the
write-down amount involves judgement and estimates. Where the
actual outcome in future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
the write-down amount charge/reverse in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Deferred tax

Estimating the amount for deferred tax assets arising from tax
losses requires a process that involves forecasting future years’
taxable income and assessing the group’s ability to utilise tax
benefits through future earnings. Where the actual future profits
generated are more or less than expected, a recognition or reversal
of the deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the period in which such
a recognition or reversal takes place. While the current operations
indicate that the unused tax losses cannot be utilised in the future,
any changes in assumptions, estimates and tax regulations can
affect the recoverability of this unrecognised deferred tax asset.

Possible impact of new and revised
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2013

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2013 and which have not been adopted in the
consolidated financial statements.

32

(c)

(d)

(e)

33
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

33 Possible impact of new and revised 33 BE-ZE-—=F=A=+—HLHF

standards and interpretations issued but ECEGEREMNIBET - FEAL
not yet effective for the year ended 31 % b 7 B BB (4%
March 2013 (continued) kRBNBELE (R)
Of these developments, the following relate to matters that FEEEEF U TRAEEAEBNZERSE

may be relevant to the group’s operations and the consolidated BIESREAY -
financial statements:

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

ETS SR 2%
HRNET RN

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures BENBREENETROER] [2H LA - 1 January 2013
— offsetting of financial assets and Financial Liabilities ’E - HieHEEREMER] —E-=f-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — F& & EBI B 15WIER] [ FHZH 25 - 1 July 2012
— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income — B2 ENmER 25 “E——%+H—H

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting Financial BRGHERERAEE] [HeHEER 1 January 2014
Assets and Financial Liabilities THEE] —ZT-—mE—A—H

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments BRI REERESE [T A/ 1 January 2015

—hf—A—H

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements BAPREERNE 105 LG E#H %] 1 January 2013

—Z-—=%—f—H

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements BRI mEERE5 [ A ELH 1 January 2013
—ZT—=%—fA—H

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities AR REERNFE 125 [REREMERERD 1 January 2013
B/ —Z-=%—HA—H

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement B EERE 3R (A FEHTE] 1 January 2013
—Z-—=%—f—H

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) BESHERE7 [ B KifE 1 January 2013
(ZF—)/ —T—-=F—f—H

HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures ARG ENE28% [REERAIRE & 1 January 2013
PEORE] —Z-=%—HA—H

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits BIEFTMBRS SR ERE19% [ESEF 1 January 2013
—Z-—=%—f—H

Improvement to HKFRSs, Annual improvement to EBII TR LB (20092201 14 1 January 2013
HKFRSs 2009-2011 cycle, except for the BB B B F[EAE (A EETHY —T—=%—f—H
amendment HKAS 1 BEETEAE 1))

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments), Mandatory BARNBREENEIORRETR (BF]) 1 January 2015
effective date of HKFRS 9 and transition disclosures [ BB B B A R E 9T a2 XA —“Z-A%—f—H

RiBERE]

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 (Amendments), BETBREENE109 - E1HKERE125 1 January 2013
Consolidated financial statements, joint arrangements (1B2T) ,V? EHBHRA /\Mfﬁfﬁﬁ’%i/\ —T-=%-A—H
and disclosure of interest in other entities: Transition quidance B Ef2ayfEas « B 5’/]

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 BRI EERE105 - B125 R 1 January 2014
(2011 Amendments), Investment entities BB GERFE275 (f/uT)ff)z,\,‘%/ —ZT-ME—f—H

HK (IFRIC) — Int 20, Stripping costs % (BARnBRERREEe) - 28 1 January 2013
in the production phase of a surface mine H205: [ BAES LEBBIFFRAL) —T—=%—f-H

The directors have confirmed that the group is in the process of ESHAAKEEFERBESER - R KA

making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, BENRERRAENTE - 2SNERBFMALLE

new standards and new interpretations is expected to be in the BT FEARREE T U AEMNLELER

period of initial application. So far it has concluded that their
adoption is unlikely to have a significant impact on the group’s
results of operations and financial position.

MBRRERERFE
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Five Year Summary

hFBE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THI{E)
2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 2009/10 2008/09
ZE-CE-=f —T——3%-F —T-2F—F ZTTNE-TF ZZT)\ETNE
HKS#E T HK$BTT HK$B T HK$7B T HK$ BT

Results E
Turnover L] 28,364,577 25,903,461 23,417,680 54,935,393 77,488,677
Profit/(loss) from operations mEnE /(B18) 1,093,371 (1,749,844) (3,333,480 643,727 2,299,518
Finance costs RERA (31,711) (83,019) (86,547) (397,161) (799,671)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEaET /(B8) 1,061,660 (1,832,863) (3,420,027) 246,566 1,499,847
Income tax ik - (8,250) (12,047) (42,600) (185,000)
Profit/(loss) for the year ARREEAER

attributable to owners FERER

of the company R/ (Bi18) 1,061,660 (1,841,113) (3,432,074) 203,966 1,314,847
Assets and liabilities EERER
Fixed assets EE&E 374,664 42,708 85,440 175,823 372,042
Net current assets MBEEFE 9,739,173 9,017,945 11,297,644 11,602,266 11,376,755
Net assets EEFE 10,113,837 9,060,653 11,383,084 11,778,089 11,748,797
Earnings/(loss) per share SRER /(B8
Basic (HK cents) BEA (BL) 0.11 (0.20) (0.38) 0.02 0.15
Diluted (HK cents) B8 (L) 0.11 (0.20) (0.38) 0.02 0.15
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